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. Tél PSDAY, SEZET*‘JKEER 27,1977
. U8 - House oF Riy sr.wmnvng,
\TG'J ) -
> s STATE doae
AND | mmmr ServicEd
: { ¢ oo Tshingfon, D.C.
s .J, 'I’he Su d aﬁ‘ 1ttea,on Fe%eral State and (%mmhmty Services met,
+= Z'pursuant i \nMice, 6% 9:10 #m.] in room 2212 RaybuLS Houst Oftic
13‘11(3.1 ? d Marfo Bm.% (c} lrman vmf the ubcoj?mﬂtee')
o rési », 8
2 P + Mey b§r§ Re resont§ ives B @f New York,iBlouih of
Tow; ;I-E: iy Oxf New &!'sey, {e}nel f New Jersgy, and Sasin of
- Coptnectiput.\}l. ‘ &
. :, " /3taff preséy qurtB lam’:at‘o, myijgrity %:ﬂi direetore Th%mas
McDonal » Ph. ., “minoritysstaff director, Ms. Clementine

Anthony, secl‘etmry:, aia?;Ms “Kat y %h chan, research assistent.

bl

OPENTNG STATEMENT §F CHATRMAN MARIO BAGGI i

‘L
* M. +BIacoL Gooii mom:% Thoaneetm 3 ca%k&o orded, %
' tatc

: A3 chammm, I welcome %ou to the Subdofimitied or Fedpral %
eand Communit. yﬁen uiv?” lc]l 13 beginninge its henunos o1l “Amn in,

the W “orld"of Tot . -

Y (?ly maturing society ig :fg&en hie/, %

facts:In 1900 onlypd percent of on%da- ~
the ffoure is 10 pertnt. By the year 20254ve,
1y "fully 20 percenbof the population.

‘.-‘ The 1fe exp aney i ‘900 as 49 years of age. Today it is 73;

tﬂa;eal 2025 it iy reach B5. Byfthe vear 2000 tWeve will be 150 ¢lde fi

o cn for &’véry 10& élderly me ip “ idows will outnumbel \\gscé

Y.

W thm the & erl;,*gaopu]_gtnon éself the pe entage of 75 and.over
has_jlisen from percdnt in 1900 t¢ 38 pgreent ine1975. By thEyear .
“will reac m t. The pereentago ofithe elderly 85 andover «
: ve&i 1960 ,4nd t y&ar 2010. Theso figtures® |
_ mg of America t\ p t ag well as &
g?om#h socml dconemic, and political im~  »
na:;@nd rﬁndmgs should LOVe Mpful in
developmg the pollcles forshe futnre.
Econotp:cally‘ we can lopk for greater demands oh the T I‘ede‘?‘al Gov-
sseritial needs-of ghe elderly, especially the °o~
. » callod ) ra1] 01‘1§ll'll ” T, s-economlc eh;% mu 11 %tened'by res”

'r«




-

dueed nuinber of wor Lt;t:s l:omg’ forced to support g rvreat('r nunibers of .
retireés unde »&‘ial secufity and private pensions. oot
Socially we look to great abuse of the institutionalization of. the
elderly M he'trend is stekting. Today for every one persgn livipg indn
institution there are three living with.their children. We.will also b |
forced, to deal with lonrfl\r periods of leisure time for our senior citi- |,
zons, ‘ e
Politically the pohtm}l powerof senior’citizens will.increase. Al-.
ready we are awgre that thg elderly vote and their ¥oting percentages
are higher tlian cther,g ps- In the 1072 Présidential election ahinos
60 pergent of the tlderly\iyoted: more than 14 percent gréster th
votery under 30. Better edlication combified with better affitience and
=0 if:! awareness mayanakdithe senior citizen of the future a stronger
potitteal force. : \
Cot, greater coffffsivenessian Icadcrshlp within the aging commu- .
"ty is Necessary to.increaséithelr national in fluence, -
Thé-e forvsight hcarlllfﬂ,‘tﬁdm are designed to help s dev clop theser
and other mcommcadatloné} for fnture, policies impacting on the el
derly. " We as & Nation m!wt ‘!nom away “froin merely maetmﬂ' to crises
and begin to anticipate odr fiture needs. .
Greater ‘fordsight coull have averted some present- qu, problens
such as ‘the fiseal conditipn-of the social security svsiem.
- The Houase Select Comnyittee on Aging wis created in 1974 t8 ::hlrl\"
the problems of'the elderiy. Already onr comnuttve has influenced the
passage of himportant legishytion to benefit senior citizens.
Onr most rgeent accomp 1\1infcnt was the passage of legi-lation te.-
eliminate mandatopy retire uont in the Federal wor Iq)lacc and raise
the man ‘Ltomu@nta (3 ¥4 70 in the private sector © -
e-p y.onr distinguislied chairman, Mr.
Iplin cnacting | this landmprk legi-lation.

we miunt also lookgo the Aithire Ilm future of aging i~ in nany re-
spects the fmure of America,
nll Therefore. 0 must the futire 4f aging affeet nsall.

One conmgtt
. Pupper. pmr:‘%‘ 1o Imflus
* Yet the cpminttee and p:llt\cul rly my subcommitte€ recognize, that

i alng i= an ongoing process. lt&li‘cct-\ s

+ " Having people live longer t enough. They must Le abk' to live
with dagmtv anil witr 1 Tespeet w} h they desorve.
At this peint.if thére is no ol th:on. I would likse to insert my pre-
pated statetnent into the rccor Toar ing none, 1t is 0 ordmed
[ The statemcnt foliowf I gﬂ

+

o _PRFPmE:D %TJLEE:HF\I' rha Cn AMBMAN \Lmto Btager .
. Good morulng, As chairman of the S wmmiltee on Feqleral, State and {om-
.~ nunity Services of the.House Select C ittee on Aging, I am Dleased to chair
this hearing on “Aging in the World of Bdmorrow". The precedent for conducting
«+ »  foresight hearings was established in IPT4 when Congresa declared fpresizhg a
mnain, responsibility of the committest. The material acquited from these hearings
will be presented.te the standing Honse #ommittees which have teglslative furiz-
dletion over Federal programs for the aging,, The subcommittee will also publish
?‘ report of the findings of these he!trfhgs When they are completed Iater this ,
ongress. 4 i
THis hearing today is the ﬂrst of a'fhree .part geries of hearings on the future
of axing. Forthe purposes of clarity gad unity, this hearing will use 63 and over
ad the definltion of aging. This first hearing will Dresent 4 broad brush picture
of t world of tomorrow, emphasizing ispecially the demographic changes that
wil 1p the population over the' nett‘iio years and the economie, soclal, and
political lmplicatlons that will tollow: ; .
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F, 100 mexd and widows Jill outn

' L]
- v - L] ‘ . v
‘»tatlstical studies of our population teil us that we are maturing. ,For exampie,
In 1975 the median age was 28, 1n 20004t wi.ll..bo 24..1n 1900, 4 percent of our
population was elderly. Today, there are 22 milljon pérgons over the age of 63
approximately 10 percent of our populatian. By 2060, there will be close to 40 mii-
lloa glderly persans over the age of 65, 4 nfzh tely 18 percent of onx, popalation,
By 2025, there may be 55 million Dersohs overthe aqe‘ot 85, which may consl:l
tiite 20 percent of our pipulation. -

Medical-techpology, higher Hving standarﬂ& and better health care have en-
.siabled nore of onr gtizens toreach the age of 65. A person born in 1900 coyld ex~
wdect to live to he}9, A person born today has g 1ife expegtancy Bf 73 }E €Ars. 'I‘l;ei

Jife sxpectancy 15 éxpected o fnch upwards and by 2025, i€ may readh
wnl¥ are mere people reachlag the threshold of the aging Fears,.they are Old tulc.
a lunger pericd of time. 1t is projeeted that a% mucli ag 44 pe erreent “of‘our aging
4clll be oger 75 in . Some social seientists are. already referving to the aging
pupilation #s twoe grolll.'ﬁ the fouugolgd, those betneen 33 and 75, and-the Qldold,
theseover 735, i
Obviously, tlus"qgmg population will have economic, socinl, and Dohtlcal im-
acts The demographics And the inplications will be.annlyzed in detail by the
witnesses here today. However. let us, tocus ,on spme of  the more obvious
Implications. . 3
A3 the popviation matur?s and expands, there are going to be !n,ore ple
6 essentials of life, such as housing. food, clothing, afif’ Toedjen
ed productive econom¥ will be necessary to.moet. e feeds. Ast
10N ages, more people will reach the retiremen the current {rgn s

. ecllning birth rates and early retiremént gdptinne, the result will be that
sy \\orhqg.-, will be avallable to sup,port more retirees in fhe future. The auesy
tious are: how far can the smier workifordeFo in subporting a large number of '
retirees® An example ls our Sdeinl Seeurlty System, As we all know, the s¥stem

mancial trouble. Sociak Security benefits are Ananced bAparroll thzes
the workforce, employers atid the self-employed. Peclining pirth
Tates, coupled\with incrensing re remeut sates have resulted In lesy svorkerf)
supportlng the ystem A lew, , the rtlo of workers to soclal securlfy
5S4 101 tods’, the ratio is 5.2 to 1:-by the year 2030, the ratio-
will approaeh 2 to 1. ial W‘“‘ﬁm‘d out $3.2 blliion‘more thnn it took in in
1076 aml it will pay out S5 b mare than it will take in this year. 1f 3.2
workers dan't support the syst toda¥, how can few ¢r workers jrer fetiree sup-
port it in the future? Last week the Hpuse of Representatives overwhelmingls |
passed leglslation tb eurtail mandatory re rement by elimlimting it in the Fed..
eral Government nnd raisiug to 70 the o t which obe can be mandatorily re-
tired jn, the private sector, By enabling |ore people to work longer, this should
enge the social security blm However, ltueh more teeds to be done. It very
well may bathat we will addltional luhorerz to supblemdnt the 15 to G4-
Lear olis Wi traditlona)ly make up the uorlce‘proi‘ce In light of such possiblitties,
;we niay wint to refexamine our ‘retiretfent palicles. especlally those that e
Lvarage or facilitate earls retireiment. to determing if the¥sare in our best inter-
eat. One study estimates that if everyb 535 ard oyer were retivgd In 2000, at -
lenst 20 percent of the poplitiatlon wo be di nﬂected however, if pecple
walted until €5 to retive, o4y 10 onld l) affected. We smust also ex-!
plbre our nttitudes toward tHe traditionnl %mn of aducatlon, fdllowed by work, .
tullpwed by retiremeut. and fhe possibiiity, of mixing Into that pattern sabbati-
eals, further education and retrain}ng. shor ter workWeeks, «4nd second and third
ca . =1
%rh the growr?ng nonmpers of persons ho will be in @pe ‘olll-old hraeket we
enn expeck 4 gTo “frail” population. Thils may meAn'A ln.tlon whielr wifl;
have to be serviced by comprehensive prog‘ramsf miich mo ensive than those
we lrmre toflay. Traditionally, the sfate ofsihe’economy d mines the-Tevel of},
aervices that can he provided. We must thy to hutieipate thi needs and explore_,
the possibijitles of fuudihe. including privtgfoundations, for-the services that
mayhe peeded to meet thdse needs.

S (31 ble that tamilies w11l be smaliér in ﬂlle tuture. An'incmsed Iife eX-_
pectaney‘?coupled with expected low birth ra dlrectly afféct the {nstitution
of the Caully. There will be an increasmg téwile majority amotiy the population
over 65, Estimates show, that hy the ¥ ere will ber omeh for every

uftbe egowem by 8o ,].. New g;hrrang‘emeﬁts.

such as group llving Wil probably develop. .

L v .




We are already £xperlencing a trend towsrd the deingtitutionalization of our
elderiy. TQday,-.tor overy one won living in an institution, lhere are nearly
thtee othérs lising with a child. The fanily bas alwass played a supportive role
in the care of the aging barent. However, fae can expect that faniities will want
more vptions in settungs gudl types 6 care avadable fur an Aged famuly 1wpember
whine health is failing, Nuf=ibg*honws mway e uecessary for a part of the poputa- ,
tivn bug many fumtlies niay seek ways of waintainiug an oliller puksun at hume,
cither in the older persor’s own homsebold or in his childmen's,

We st examie the living patterus that we exlect to duwlug »0 that wewil
have the facilities Doces<ary to ncconyuodate thosg patterns.

. While’ the elderly du nut necessarily constitutg a ugified voting block, the po-
tebtial to develop intu a grow g politient fwmre Traplitivually. the elderly

h.ne 2 high volung plruntu'm‘ In 1072, atibost 67 percent of the eldirly voled
the Presudential electior, fully 14 pereent groater thian the voters unller 34,
l’“uvs #ich s the estent te wluch Goverument services gre distribifted will hikely
spul the umfleation nevessars for senivr bower. In additivo. the elfierly of tomor-
row will be moreeducated. hive lived ln greater affluence, and will have wituessed
“or participated In politieal activism unlike their prédecessors, They will evalnatg,
candiutes and issues more ¢losely and they will comnagd the highest attention
. of publie officials, who will need their voie to snrvhe.

, The advantages of foresight hearings must not be overlooked. I eannot helD
sbut think fhat perhads our Social Security System would be in belter shape if
+ ' we had taken the time some Fears age to Mok ahead, *

The House Select Conumittee on Aging bhs directed its efforts toward programs
derigned to assist the elderly on suchrissuwes 05 health care, retirement security,
hansing, and services. The commitiee will continue those efforts and through these
hearings will‘be ennbled to plan for the future. In olher words, we will be able
to follow the theory thnt “{orewarned is forearmed.”

T woulll like to make two proposals. The first is that all legislation bresenled
to the Fonse of Represcntatives be accompanied Ly a foresight impact statement.
This should enable its to make more c;lpmmible decisions. The second proposal
I would ke to make is that we establish & Cabinet level Dcpartment for the
Aging, This would insure Lhat the e1derly and their needs wil receive, on a con-
linuing basis, attention from thé highest levels of the executive branch. The
.elderly are a growing pobulation. The future of aging in many respects, j» Lle
future of America. We mnst begin today to prepare for tomorTow. o

My, .c‘:mrasm. : . . X
STATEMENT BY REPRESENTATIV:E BONALD A, SARASIN

* )

Mr, Sarasiy: Thank von. Mr. Chairman,

Todav we are beginning n setjics of hearings on “Thé Tutuye of Ag-~
mf' *The futare we will talk aliont is not tome far-off time. however,
Fver vone who s alive today will be 65 o, older in the vear 2023. We
are qidekly shifting from a vowlg pepulation to an old pnpnlatmn.

Medieal addvanee- Aminst dis ‘IQ(“, and control of the aging process
Jt=zetf will only ha-ten this shiff. Tt would be disastrous not to look at
this transformation and plan to'mect it accordingly. .o

All too often. however, (nnmoeq has not been reactive. am’l exer-
eised leadership by hindsight. Tt is $erv much like the king who ran
from, hiz palace E-hmlllng %Show me where my people are going so T
ean lead them.” The catehup szmol:nment, as wet have pmnfnllﬂ,
learnéd, is 1rro=;pon%1blo and eostlv both in Raman and fiscal terms.

This subcommittee is taking a f_hfk'or&nt tack. We are atfempting to
be proactiveslook ahdad and sce &lat isin store for ns. We are exer-
cisiijg the foresight responsibility Congress tot}]\ upon itself spveral” |

cepearsafo.

Indications are that fomerrow’s elderty will he different from to-
day’s in numbers. proportions, and character. If it is our responsibility &

ERI
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5 -
to look after the Federal, State, and community services offeréd to the
derly then we had better look ahead today to plan for those services

OmeTTOW. e .

" No oue is unreasonable enoligh to demand certain facts about tomor- | |
row's elderly, However, ther? are tmn&;\i&d'futuristic thinkers who
have developed a technolody that does look at trends. that does fore-

" cast, and that.does draw Pictures about alternative futures. & good -
number of thewe future thinkers are with us toglay, and I look for-
ward to their testimony about the elderly. ) .

“These foresight hearings give us a ¢hance to reflect for a brief mo-
ment on what tlie world will be like, what our valies will be, and what
alternatives we have. It is then up to the decisionmakers to help bring
the mgst desirable world about. Specitically for us, it 1neans planning
and providing adequate and hunane services for tomorrow's elderly.

Today we are taking the first step into the futiire. I"look forward to
this and subrequent liearings of “The Future of Aging.” After all, the
(hiture of Ameriea's elderly actually begins today &

Thank you. Mr. Chairman. o of

Me. Buicor. The gontlcmﬁi}?fx_'.oﬁl Twga, Mr. Blouiu.

i ) ) 5 )
STATEMENT BY REPRESENTATIVE MICHAEET. RLOUIN

¢ A ¥
Mr. Bleory, Fhank vous Mr. Chairr%an. e 17 o
I wonjd like to take this brief opportunity to comimend the chair-
man of this subcommyittée for scheduling thesafforesight hearings. As
. wou -well knoiv, foresight hearingé gre rave creaturesin the Congress.
We tend to lookat programs while they are going on, or even after
they have ended, but it is very rare that we take the time to consider
acourse of action forthe'futurte. . .t
T‘hope that this subcommittee wilk provide the leadership to focus
theattentisn of Congress in this area, .

_ Currently temidr citizens gonstitute less than 15 percent of the Na-
tion's popujation. Yet iff 1éss thaw 56 years that figure may grow to 20
percent of the popilation. As more and more people reach this mile-
stone, it will becomesmore and more important for ns to carefully ex-
amine and consider the effettgiof what we do. on the elderly. .
. It has become apparent fifirecent years that the.elderly are a grow-
ing political force in this Nation. There is a sense of political activism
and concern over certain Msues which dramatically affect the elderly.
Tssnes <uch as retirement, rising fuel cosh, fixed ‘incomes, transporta-
tion. delivery of serviges, andgso onft is Bisential that we wet ahold of

. these issufgnow and understand tHem hefore they became major prob-

-, lems for 1 ontof 9"91‘1%%{\1’"8?%&113. i SV
. In an cffort to helpfe nnderstand thidke concerns and give the sen-
ior citizens of my part of tha country a direet input into my staff, we

*have addbd a senior interi by the nameaf Martha Thomas. & native

of Thibuarie,Jowa, & 69-year-old longthire gommmnity activist who

& will he with us for g eounle of weeks T Waghington office followed

1 several monthsof gesistanclic oﬁﬁ rict olfidts. Martha will sive

rifNeen stoff Derson to express their /ﬁ

.

7 seniors a knowldeesblo and axperifh
canjeerns o ac 5oll ghsoxfone whe willp¥dice theSe conecerns directly
tome. 7y Wy 7 sl :
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I would urge other Members of Congress, whio have yet to take this |
step, tolestablish that kind of internship in their office. I would hope. °
that ouf committee would continue to urge the respective committees

and thd Congress to make headway on legislation to estallish the
seRioD ¥ntern program ds a permanent fixture in the Housey

‘Mr. Bracer. I want to thank you, Mr. Blouin., . )

* You pight like to know that I have a member of my stafl that makes
yéur Martha look like an ingenue, ’ :

Mr. Broory. Would you care to explain that for the record, Mr.
Chairman$ " . ' -

Mr. Brager. A gentleman of some 75 years of age. As a committee,
we ard Ifoking forward to learning from the scholars in the field of
uging, ldoking for guidance, and hopefully at the conclusion we will’
be ablp to promulgate a program that will be able to deal with the
apticipated problemns, . "t .

' Thq first ‘witness is Mr. Theodore Gordon. Mr. Gordon is president
of thd Fusred Group, a spinoff of the Insgitute for the Future. Ho
establjshed himself in the futufes field with the publication of two
tajoy works: “Report on a Long-Range Forecasting Study” and a
book ¢ntitled : “The Future.” . -

' Hejhas been the prineipsal investigator in'researeh studies sponsored .
by tHe Office-of Technology Assessment and' the National Science
Foundation. The Futures mlHB has ]just finished a significint six-
volume project ealled: “A™Study of Lifc Extending Téchnologies,” .
Mr. {fordon, good morning and welcome. '

STATEMENT OF THEODORE J GORDON, PRESIDENT, THE FUTURES -
- L, grROTZ 7 .

‘ L
Mr, Gorpox. Mr. Chiairman, gehtlemexf.
I{ is indecd & pleasure for me to be here this morning. Your inquiry
intq the potential numbers and condition of the elderly-is indeed im-
porfant in my view, for several reasons. - . .
‘Hirst, the number of elderly persons scems certain to contimie to
grow as you have all recognized this morning.
Jecond, this gidup has certain needs which are now only dimly ree-
bgnized and served, and which couldbe changing in the future.
hird, the impdcts of the changing age distribytion in our society
‘i]t‘ eneral sre not yet well understood, but could b8 very important not |
v to the elderly, but to society at large. - ° . '

hus, Yonr-inquiry could affeet the Wpiness n‘_d dignity of the
t

elgerly and help capture some of, the @portumitics of the coming
ddmographic shlﬂS'an@;n'ﬂ_p' avoid their.pitfalls. I dommend you for
this inquiry.”, ; . <L

jindeed, as you have'suggested, we have just finished o study for the
Nationa] Science Foundation for their Applied ] ¢h Directorate, .
t 3RANN Group. This study wag funded at a level of about $300,000
ehd extended. over a period of 18 months. . ",

This work is generally. direeted toward identifying what technolo-
ﬁ:ﬁ may be expected in the near term that could have the effect of
o[ nding life expectancy. Then inquiring about the m)nseqllencos of
r ' S '
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those technologies-on derhography, the social aspetts of the ecohomy,
and.values in general in society. .

To summarize, we/found three important things, Life expectancy
is indeed increasing; tbere are new biomedical technologies on the
horizon, that wH accelerate this trend; and changing age distribution
can well' have significant econornie and social impacts. >

Incidentally, I might mention that while the final report has not
becr published in its final forin, I have draft copies of the report avail-
able for the committee and itsstaff. ’

1See apypendix 1, p. 59 for Mr. Gordon’s regort, “The Results of a
Teghnology Assessinent of Life-Extending Technologies™.] ol

Ve designed the study to focus on near-terin biomedical capabili-
ties which would extend life and to search for the implieations of these
technologies. We concentrated on adult life. We omitted aceidents, we

-did not examine suidide prevéntion technology, although we consid-
ered suicide from the standpeint of its effects on values as lifespan-
Inereases. A :

7 We addressed the situation in the Utited States, primarily. although
we also looked, at least fn a preliminary fashién, at the consequences
'la_f these life-extending technologies on other tountries, the world at
arge. - ~a

‘e considered, as I mentioned, only technologies that were near at

hand, coming into géneral use in research and development; or which
were now considered fo be biomedical goals. In other words, we didn’t
try tostretch ocut into the next century to-ask what was there, ave-

. really asked abdut what was really almost in hand and what conse-
quence 1t would have. s :

Agis well khown, new life expectancy at all ages has been increasing
from 48 years in 1900 to 72 years in 1975, Ths is life éxpectancy at
birth,. these are the figures which are'most often quoted.

However, life expéctancy at advanced age which was our concen-
tration here hms ghown mich less dramatic improvement. In 1900 a

. man at 60 coald expect to live some 14 more years. In 1976 a man of
60 could expect to live 17 more years, In other words, the ilmprovement
over tbat time 1s only 8 years, Life expectancy at birth has increased
as & result of improvements in infant mortality and ciring of many
disenses of childhood: Diseases of middle age and advanced age, heart .
disense, cancér, stroke, have been much more diffieult to conguer and
it 18 these diseases specifically that we are talking about here. ¥urther-
more, the aging rocess which is péorly understooed, seems to place an
upper limit on lifespan. -~ . ‘

As we Jooked 'into the biorfiédical technologies we fdund that there
wore three general strategies that were being pursuedq

First, research into prevention,’ diagnosis, and treatment of heart
disense, cancer, and stroke. Disease control. T
. Second, and a quite different line of rescarch, research into the cause -
for aging itself with the possibility in the minds of the researchers of
. slowing the very process of aging, .- ¢ . .

And third, researclr into the velationship between social conditions,
aging, and death. . : T ) .

T]ige effects of these technologies could be viewed as sithier inereasing

the number of people who live to older age, we call that Squaring of
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<hanges would include the development of more parallel jobs, shared

work, part-time work, shortening of (:he,wor#week, serial earcers:
We found that retirement age would have To ineyease about 6 years

by the year 2000 in order to balance the inflow and outflow of the

social seeurity fund. _ ‘ -

We worked with the American €ouneil of Life Insuran'ce.‘l‘he:v
convened several special panels for ns to study the comsequences of
thiese ehanges on ina\gance which was vety he)l’ '

ful. - *

Even without life extension the aged will havcpmore political elout.
however. we do not know whether thig clout, this potential, will ¢rans-
late into political power. The notion of how values change with age
is-not clear. at all o '

Raising retiremelt age—— Lo

Mr. Bracer, What do you mean by that?

. Xir. Gorpox. 'Well\ the, people who we had looking &t that partie-
ular part of the studrecognmized well the number of aged inereased,

. and that the aged will haye ?articu}ar vietvs, but it is not at all elear
whether that brings politival cohesiveness or not, whether they will
act asa political blec. N . e v ,

Mr. Bracar. Can I give you a practital expetience?

Mr. Gorpow. Certainly. : L /

Mr, Bragor. I think mly colleagues will share' my views, |, 1,

I don't know of any legislation that is li ought out to the floor of
the House of Representatives for consideration affecting the elderly
that isn't always passed almost unanimously. That can only be the
result of a recognition of first. the ment of the issue. There ate many -
things that have merit that don't see the light’of day, bitt also the
. politieal clout, and therd i5 a Teason, is nior¢ s0 today than ever before.

: I witneds my own mother. She was never involved in politics until
she got involved in the senior eitizens group. When I ran. for office
she wanted to know whaf I stood: for. :

My, Goroox. And that’s clout, right. .

Mr. Sarasts. That’s perception.. .., ‘

Mr. Braggr, There is sufficient testimony and evidence fo the fact
that the seriiors are organizing and they have very substantial, very

+ effective representatives in every legislative forum. They participate
with a zeal beeauge it becomes a, very important part of their lives. -

I don’t know that thoSe of us in public life aren’t happy about it.

. V¥e see that progressively we are providing more responses to the needs

" of the senior eitizens. Ter'Select Committee on the Aging is certainly
evidence*of the fact that there is great récognition and, as I said’in
my opening statement, the committee has been responsible in many
wais for inereased benefits of the aglhﬁ‘simply by expressing its view
and its constant advocacy under our chairman and by the prpposals
that we submit. So ¥ you have any doubts about their political co- -
Jresiveness, let me disabuse you.of them. .- T ‘
Mr. Gorvox. Thank you. . . : - :
Lot me just summafize as really all I megnt by my stetement is
that it is very difficult to forecast ag the sizé grows what that will do*

. to political activism‘of the group. Ini fact, I know of no way to really

v geb at that from- a'theoretieal standpoint.. - :

==~ Mr. B1ager. They live lgl:m & dey-to.day.bagis, .

M. Goroox. We found that raising the retirement age could bring
+  significant changes in the ftamlly, it would changs the relationship in
P A -:'I<*" . ' S ’ ) J
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"’0-7.1 or from about & pement to about 10 per ceut Wlth accclcrunon
of disease-curing tethnologies ropresented by our squarcd casey the
tmmber of pooplc over Gﬁ(s)eems likely to grow to about 1.2 billion peo-
ple by the year 2025 or about 1414 percent t of the world’s population.
On¢ eﬂ'ocg:f disease-curing teelwiologies which we find =0 proniising
is to inereasSe world populatien. In ¢ our demographic model wé found
. thab current trends suggest world pqpulat.wn will gr ow Arom about -
4 billion to about 7.7 bllllon by the yeqr 2025,
Introducing these new?technologies would increase world popula-
tion by 2025 %0 8.3 billion or seme 600 million more people. Of the 600
million more people, 400 niillion would be 10 the less developed coun-+
trigs and 200 millton in the developed countrics., , .
‘Focusing again on the United Stages, now in asking about the eco-
nomnic conscquences of these changes, we fonnd that the social and eco-
nomje impacts attributable to these new teehnologies seem likely to be
minimal-prior to the year’2000. Of much more importance to_the
economi¢/,and sacial conditions is the assimed retirement age w. hich
- goes with these chapges. We felt that this issue was, 31gn1ﬁcant for the
study since the technolegies we investigated would be likely to.have
the cﬂ'c(}t of igereasing the vigor and ?hmmls'hmg the sy toms of
aging o lple as the_y appreach today’s retirement a c ith vigor
#% o particular age ehanging, clearly rétirgment ages mlghtmehan«e -
also, This regults 1h changes in the labor fol‘eo stze whlch are qul.ta
- signifieant.
- We formed the mpress:on that retnrement age, would be hkély to
increase for several reasons: -
* Tirst, pells have indicated tha& nany retlred peoplc, when asLeEl, .
say they -would-rather be working. * -~
Second, the feedings of anomie and nse]cssness whxch somatlme comu =
Jwith, netlrcmant pparently aceclerate denth,
¢, Thurd, both social security and pension funds wou]d bencﬁt a.ppre-
" ciably.by1i increasing retirfement ageonly 2 fowyears.
" Fourth, diserimination on the basis of age after 65 scem to us at
the time of the study, about a ysar ago are hkcly to be consdere&«ﬂ
e,%l in the rear future:
for alt of th reasens we pursued the eonsoqnenees of mcrcasmg
retirement age, e thought it likely and importaiit to mvestlgatc.
< ... My Bricor. Those nrg some of the very reasons that we offer;™ in,
. the advogacy of the application of mandatory retirement. a
Mr,-Gorpo¥. “Yes, I commiend you for that, sir, , B
\Ir “Btacat. By the way/the American Medical Association m ts
" studys concludéd ghat forced retirement impactéd negatively on life
expectaney a’é&\\'gh a3 Henlth, To, paraplivase it, if you are forced to. *
“retiro yon_ are .almqq% cO)tdcmnod to die or 1t accelcratos ‘the" rate of
' doath d- - ] - "
©Mr., Gorbox. Tt i the feeling of uselessneas that,goes w 1t11 that.
"The effect of délayed retirement would inelitde an increase in GNP,
dintinishing of dependency ‘ratio, reduce burden on social secumty,
'_ . improve-socialization Biong tfm eldcrl{ and, most significdntly, a
T *q potcntll:{ul problom in: the provxsmn of ja s‘i‘Or all of those Who msh
. to wor
With respéct, to this Jatier gomt we formed the lmpresa?on thas ,
?he natare of the work woul change in these clrcumstanoes, the




<hanges would include the development ‘of more parallel jobs, shared
work, part-time work, shortening of the -wor#wch, serial careers: .
We found that retirement age would have to increase about 6 years
y the year 2000 i order to balanee the inflow and outflow of the
social security fund. ~ e TET e o
Wo worked with the American Council of Life Insuranbe.'l‘lic:v
convened several special panels for us to study the consequences of
these chdnges on insurance which was vety helpful. - * '
Even withont lifcg%feusiou the aged will have more political clout.
however. we do not know whethier thi clout, this potenttal, will trans-
late into political power. The notion of how values change with age

-
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1s. not clear at sl -
Raising retiremekt gge——m—
Mr. Bracer, do you mean by that?
. Mr. Goroox. 'Well the, people who we had looking 4t that partic-
ular part of the stu gmized well the number of aged increased,
. and that the age articular viets, but it is not at al! clear
whether that brings political eohestveness or not, whether they will
act as a political bloc. N . e > .
Mr. Bracar. Can I-give you a practical experience?
Mr. Goroan. Certarmnly. : L v/
Mr, Brigar. I think my colleagnes will share my views. | |
.. T don’t know of any legislation that is brought out to the floor of
the House of Representatives for copsiderjtion affecting the elderly
.that isn't always passed almost unanim,ouslg. That can only be the
result of a recognition of first. the merit of the issne. There are many -
_ things that have merit that dor’t sce the light“of day, bt also the
. politieal clout, and therd 15 a reason, is mord so today than ever before.

: I witness my own mother, She was never involved In polities until
she got inyolved in the senior eitizens group. When I ran. for office
she wanted to know what I stood for. o

Mr, Goroox. And that's clout; right. .
Mr, Sarasry. That’s perception. s :
Mr, Bracer. Thers is sufficient testimony and evidencs to the fact
that the seriiors are organizing and they have very substantial, very
« effective representatives in every legislative forum. They participate
with a zeal because it becomes a, very important part of their lives. -
I don’t know that thoSe of us in public life aren’t happy about it.
. We see that pmgressiv’%lﬁv we are providing more responses to the needs
* of the senioy citizens. The Select, Committee on the Aging is certainly.
evidence*of the fact that there is great recognition and, as I said’in
my opening statement, the committee has been responsible in many
Wags for incregsed benefits of the agmghsimply by expressing its view
and its constant advocacy under our chairman and by the Frgposals
that we submit. So if you have any doubts abouttheir politital co- -
esiveness, let me disaggse you.of them. - .- R C
Mr. Gorooxn. Thank you. . . o C :
Let me, just. summarfize as really all T megnt by my statement is
. that it is very difficalt to forecast &g the size grows what that will do*
to political nctivism‘of the group. In fact, I know of no way to really
~_- get at that from: atheoretical standpoint.. - - :
"= Mr. Bracer. They live it on a day-to-day.basis. v
Mr. Goroon. We found that raising the retirement age could bring

I}

~ significant changes in the !almly, it would change the relationship in
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the family between elderly people and. younger le. Increasing”
labor” force participation c?; ?heliaged magohelggehtep:f%%m titionsxfl;?
jobs, That’s a particularly difficult area and I will come gck to that
before my testimony finishes. And ‘of .rourse, inereasing retirement
age increases interest for planning for .mideareer and continuing
Heation, .. . .
We formed the belief that for the_ nexsf 25 vears the technologies
‘that we studied would have the effect 6f gztending middle age ,mamr
than extending old age. Of course the key(to this is the condition of—
of course this is the key to the condition #f society that exists in this
time that we are talking abont, if affects health costs, welfare burden,
.. %llxctx\'lt)'. socialization, national vigor, old-young relationships.

* St first constderation it would seem that net national health costs
would increase as the result of this squaring of the survival. How- _
ever, if those technologies are achieved by preventative means rather
than therapeutic means then the opposite may he the ¢ase, healt)f care
costs-may drop. For example, the discovery of jthe linkage between
.natritional factors ahd cextain discases could increase longevity at a
very low cost, very low health cost. ‘. .

Here are some of our specifie recominendations: .
.~ We felt that it was worth studying to help seach an understanding of
the ehanging complex interrejaﬁloniip between retirement age andgthe
nature of work, particularly the riature of work surrounding the age of
retirement, We Lelieve that changes in retitement age will cause fun-
Jamental differences in our ecconomy and the way older people.live and ¢
view themselves.. oo ' S
We felt that detailed information should be collected and made avail- |
able to other researchers about economic contributionsand consumption
levels made.by older people.. - - . )
. We felt that various agencies of the Government shoild jnclude in
. their policy-thinking, estimates of the consequences of their aetions on
the age of retirement. This recommendation is particnlarly relevant
to policies followed by the Department of Labor and the Social Secu-
rity '‘Administration, the Arraed Forces and State and local govern- -
ments. Policies which affect retirement age can add profound and
lasting consequences on‘the nature of our economy. When most policies
tend fo.diminish retirement agh the in®vitable ¢onsequence will.be in-
. creasing dependency ratio and isolation of the There may be
. other policies, which sflect dependency ratios directly rather than
through retirement age. These should be pinpointed and understood in
“terms of their likely consequences for the Arperican society.

‘Theso inglude. for example, policies which dela entrjy inbo the -
labor force, shertening the workweek, introdnce sabbaticals or inter-
mittent retirement and so on. o . ! CoaL L
~ We. felt that additional studjes should besapplied to questions of

. internatipnal hnpacts of life-extending technologies and the changin
. social dimensions whiclt might accompany these technologies. We
gave it only a cursery review. Such impacts were syggested here but )
were viewed to Be beyond our work. World population, of course,isa "
problem that faces 1s now .and these technologies which we favor !
. obviously will have the impact of increasing the world population.
Therefote, this additional study I feel is warranted> . = - .
" Wo felt finally that Government estimates of the cost of developing
biomedica! techiiology should ineluds fronr the outset estimates of the

A
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. cost of producing these techpologies and distributing them in sotiety. _
» “We want. to go beyond priting R. & D. and suggest that we price
‘the application of the results of the R. & D‘jjloufd.it be successful.
. * . For example, R. & D. in the prosthetic devices of one sort or another
PRV .H;igh,t result in-very large focial expenditures lafer ou to apply those
» .. 7 deviges to i peopleTo exténd life, wheréas veseavch into nutyition for
, example, could be applicd across the board and rather inéxpensively
"+ withthe same kind of life-extended consequence. _
. ... W4 felt that, emphasig in Tesearch.on lhife-extending technologies
., .hould be given to thosefwhich promise to ke inexpensive. not enly for
-~ immediate, but for theé steondary egst as well.. | .
I oM very p'}e%sa} tofiiave the chance to talk with you this morniug,,
gentiemen. Cl’m answfr any gnestions abont this work? .
©  Mn Bragel..Thank Jou very much. . -

A disfingmished Jphns IHopkmns Diologist predicted 1n & regent
speech £hat. by the ypar. 2000 wmost peolz)le will reinain vigepous until
the Agd 0f"00 ov 10f. Others say that biologists are.on thé verge of
facilitbting the Jiff span of 200 years. Do these predietions square
with yi uz, resegrehfond if so, what implications that you hgve found?
1fnot, why is théfefa discrepancy ¥ ,

Bip. Gorooy. WE classtd researchers.into three general elasses. s

’ The immottaligts, that is those researeliers who “felt that the life,

¥ 5pan conld he exkended perhaps even through immortality. The in-

_cromenfalistg, tlfat is thiose résearshers who Wére tryiug to cure

, diseasa,or detecfa disease early or to find sogie kingk of therapy that

+ let uscope, angd the mensuralist. that is.thoSe prople who felt that

-~ aging/is a sociyf phenomenon, or at least accelerated by-isocial stress,

as & gxample, fnd therefore they conegntrated on the social aspect of
how the aged five and the feedback of that on to the aging process.

T¢ deal with the immortalists now, in answer to your question
speeifically v found thaf there were a number of separate limes of
reseprch profeeding dhhwltaneously to get at the underlying causes
fowagin# - .

ome/of fhe work dates back decades,,literally decades. Many of
these peoplf who are doirfg the fundamental work on life span exten-
sion had laporatory animals which-demonstrated the validity of their
principle. But ‘we established that there were many different princi-
ples beiénl phrsied in peril. There is no fundamental understanding.
sir, of fho ]pfoccss of aging. What is it that cduses aging to exist and
fhese jpeople are pursuing it from that fundamental basis. .
- Fhgre fre those researchers who find the canse for aging diet. Life .
 span/ extpnsions has been demonstrated by lowering the temperature
, of orgarfisms. The immune mechanism is blamed for some as the cause
~ for agide, We become immuned to mutations in onr own body of pur
. own selfres and our immune mechanism sets up to kil those mutations.

The pituitary gland is blamed by some cross Jinking in the pucleus
of a mplecnle itself, of proteins within the cell’is blamed by athers as
the cafise for aging, They-are all appronching the problem from dif-

orent] points of view and all can-demonstrats or most can demonsirate
" ! somegkind of success. Lo ST
+ . . This is a typical situation where a break through can aceur auickly
..~ atid plmost unexpeetedly. | o B A
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/" For gar work we viewed thesekinds of technologies as much less cer-
Ttain than technologices of the other sort. We Ent these off into the latter
p.u't}bf this century and’all of the mumber that I gave ypuﬂl_d not in-
clude this kind of breakthrough. You must see that if this bréak-
thyro ore to occur 1€ wouldn't be felt“in society for 100 vears
lhabl}' it would be most effective when applied to young
« LihTeer and.those children wonld age and the effects on society wonld
be quite late. | : Lo .
But for the other technologies. maintain your hope, because it-seeimns
thev ave coming in the nearer term. . Y
ot nie comment specifically on the numbers tl;at vou mention
uosv in your question. We.do not agree with those forecast
pretanay at birth we think will ¢climb to about 78 by the 3
6 by the vear 2023, Those humbers are 2 resulf of
male -abouf the effect of these technelogies. UF
tions ean be valid also. This i= an uncertain 1
‘principle that ? agreed to is that these techriologles are near in Jiand -

e

and their affect pn the life span of currentIy middle aged persops will.
b felt bt the ¥ear 2000 and shortly thereadfter. , g
Mr. Briger’ I think you made réference to it and the factgls there
i~ research going in two directjefis, Research always has to by funfled,
where should tlfe Government put its money in relation toflife/span
‘extending technology or péeaieh or dealing, with diseases grboth?
 Mr. Goroox. I thinkfhis shoild be mixed, - - /-
" The powibility of feaching an'nnderstanding: of the byfsic gangse for
aging i 50 appealihg that we certainly ought to suppoyt that kind of
view, but the otler is fiearer term and. of course, has tife potential for
Aleviating x #reat deal of suffering,andrshould he pufsued as well.
Let me méntion one argument that the immortalisjs made to us. In
. talking p¥oui ing. sgrfe of them said, listen, this is'the ares that |
onght po be § ifonght to be funded becaust you are right and
' fzing in our research. then wofhave automatically
care of those other diseases that ‘ave asgocjhted “with aging. §
we” hate the whole thingin our hands. - - * f .~ St
Mk, Bugst. Of course, yon.know which is fiyst, the chicken or the

.

Jemg, . T - - .
= f-:n'gl'r:, Gorbox. Indeed, sir. Indeed. )
s Mr. Bracor You say that.if the present degth fate continues by the
7 . yedr 2000 our population of those Who are 65 years and over will in-
/. r. trease from 21 million £o,30 million and by 2025 to 45 million. Are
/. sou taking into acconnt.the fact that the ephde death rate in 1975 un-
! . l%;:ptectodl_\' dropped to the lowest level e\f;éxvj,rpcorclqd in tite United .
st otatesg - -~ " . i ¢ . -
ASR Mr. Goroox. Yts, sir, that’s an interesking phenomenont. . = |
A We picked it up in onr stut;llyg_I believe before it was generally
« « » . known we saw that change and it comes from technologies—we be-
lieve~technologits of the sort that we dre talking about here. That is,.
disensé ‘curing techniologies who think the origin is twofold although
"+ T miist say that we are not certain, of this but we think it is because of
fhe decréasing death rate die td heart 4iseqse and accidents. ,
Mr. Biagel s it likely thet the death rate will continue to drop
dramatically <o that evéh your projécfions aremneh too low? .
v . ) ) L3 . . -

»
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* * kngw them toda
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‘It if a reasoned osition gl

L

Mr. fiorpox. Well not llkely b t T wouldn’t ignore the pOSSlblllt\t -
Mr Biager. Well. as you Sa«l(f is ratio drop i 15 phenomenal and at’

one tfme unlikely>What is you conte lntlon ~
MJ. Gorpon, 1} 1""?ll there is nofhin; rtain‘about this kind of study.’

ot we know, given trends that ar,
ungerway now. This is whet§b think is a plausable kind of.future.’

Certainly the future can . ? on either side of that and in some
ptcntlall} surprising wa or example, if there were a reak-
hrough. in aging research—An instantancous breakthrough— imagine:

h 50-year.pill for 23 cents that could be taken by anyone ' with No bio-
cal sﬁe cffects. I imagine that it would have & very good market
nd it wopld certainly chrmge the results of this study here because

~ « we did not anticipate that kind-of technology.

ts

- that we ought to mc

Sure it is possible that we are wrong in some of these forecasts, bt
I think it i3 a plausable futnre that eap | be tl}e basis of policy plannm e,

It has that kind of perspective for us’
Mr. Biicer. You aleo stated the percentage of the po ulatlon ]

Fears and over wﬂl’«grow from 10 percent to 14 petcent by the year
2025, you sugg&m sthat with continuing success in overcommg
diseage may reach. ev}sﬂ?hthgh as 22 percent? ¢
Arg we in fact gom_g‘{thmugh a population transf‘omlatlo a ﬁenons
. ehanfge froni.a yonn %‘J fold society?
. Gornox. Well %

* nred which, yon have }ust. read is gn ngingBociety.

- Jn our work we assumed a continuing low birth rate and with birth

rafe remaining low and mth the additional growth of*people over 65

and.that sge cohort, the 1nevlta.b c resnlt ls an gging center of grant}
_population.

J--"""/

POUTSe, g of the co itants of theseiﬁg-‘- -
d

; Mz Bracat. If T recollect corfectly,’ ygu ssud t.hcrc mlght l;e 1rnpact o

/more on ther ddle nde?

\[I' (!S, |ir, - . ’ ' '
Ses, thm‘e are two . ways to these nddltlonal peof)lc that we are
tnlhnghabouf ns over 63. A th biologically 65 years olds ns we
know, them todny or are the l:ﬂolo,f;rlc:nllw;r 55 or 15 years olds as we
MrrBrasor qu are sterfotyping, right? -~ {‘e'
\ e ard stercot);pmg, but,it is an mmge of
ety that Wwe are t dl)g to convey here.
Are we ettcnd or are we extending middle age. In re-
viewing the tech es e formed a view ]t;?_c the kind of society
-our: thinking ag/béing most likely is one
in which middle age is n andard and not ofd nge,.or at least we haVc
the prospect of having afvigorous 66-year-61d population. -
[p Brdcar. Ithink rLanth ate the answer to this question, but

funded ¥ .
Mr. Goppox, Wl e ar\a giifiein

_search.anto technol leS hat cxtcn ife ; that ig, search for the ¢anse

out technélc;gles that—-tha re-

for the mcorg:l anyway, hew shou ?t?m expandmg te ologles be

for aging. Most o ork is being funided by the Federal Govern-

8-!80,1 :-M T
THere is a great deal bf interest in this and I-ﬁﬁﬁﬁ that it is m}rth

. ment.no,'b bnt we found some work belng funded by private mdnstry -

cOntu;umg the fundmg by the Federql Govcmmcnt rmd also worth "

t

A




technologies. . ¥x
Mr. Bracer Mr}l'Sarasin?
Mr. Sarasy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, -
.. Isthere foing-to ’angthmg for the people that wh are talking about
in place? If we extend life and we have a greafer elderdy E:pulntion,
are we doing them & favor at"the present time? Bhould we be thinking
more about trying to improve the quality,of life at present? ~
Mr: GorpboN. Well,.of course. i | .
The way yoy pose‘i the question it is.dn “either/or” and I'd like to . |
angwer w& ought to be doing Lioth, Y SR
I mentione§ that there isa feedback between the condition of life and
.+ aging and death. That’s very true. The £ in% of uselessness, feelings
- of social 15olation’ acceletate that and any kind ¢f social strueture that
. e build that encapsulates‘the aged or isolates the aged is clearly some-
. thing that ought to be removed. They are a viable, important part of
.. - steiety and we will a]l be there ourselves. : > ©
. #(On the other-hand, if we would take a vote and put it on that besis
- ..of.given. today’s circumstance who would opt for increased lifespan,
~ the woting would bg heavily in faydr, I think..So T would suggest that
. bath aspects of your question ought to be pursued of clearly extending
2 Tife In a gociety that doesn’s retoghize the value of an elderly lifeisa_ |
#7 . . vacuous:pursult and both have to gd forward. -7 . - .
: ' , do I detect a biastoward nutritional

1 Co- .
wg\that I did notstart with ift the-

considering increasing the level becnﬁ‘e ‘of the promise of tho

+ 4

~ Mr Sagasin: Idon’t mean that a$ atnegative comment. .
., Mr.Goroox. Noj; but you are right. I formed 4 bias in the process of
. the work. I didn’t start the.study with that hias, but I formed the bias
in the.process of the work.. - ' L e k3T "
. We are very ignorant of the relationthip between what we eat and
the environment in which we work to health and disease, The ignorance
+ is astounding to'me and I formed the impression, as‘{l 1 astulely de
( ‘ ) is &, .promising direction’ for re
search to go in terms of its effect on health. . - T e .
\ ““What is the relationship between what we eat and how we age and
. ¢ what.diseases we contract. The data ig suggestive of relationship bhut-
g '“thia_'fﬁ'ﬁdalﬁentglgiow_leglgq that is rgquireg 1isabsedd, - .
. ye M. Sasasy. We keep reading abouNt_'Eﬁofle inthe Soviet Union
Sy wlsttah live ta 140 or 150 and there 33 Nichol. with his 180-year-old
- L Inolel——r: . . - : ' R . et .
" M. Gornox. Both enti:;ig yoguit. . - R
PR Mzr. Sarasin. Both eating yogait, Whét does that tell you? I'm sure
- you have looked at that very carefully and I'm sure you paid more *
.-, - pttention toit than the averagé person would. P A
<3 . Mr;CorooN, Wedid noblook ptitearefully. & ... 7 ' .
.+ . VWhatif siggests to us, though, in our oursory gbﬁlking,pbout it, was
- wa . that lifespBn, maximum ilfespan, has some flexibility to it. Ifthe data
. are cotrect, and there are people who are 140 years old, that meatisthat <
", there.aré_circumstances.jinder ﬁhzch péople éan live, including that
_ 7 nutntidn_and environment. which can éxtend maximum lifespan from
_» ,what we know it in this country to be to 40. percent more. That gave us
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‘some hope that the kinds of research being d&xe on. agihg as‘a
phenomenon hasa prophety. . . . .- A

Mr. Sarasiy. In that pArticular situation von see a stretching out of
old age or do yon sce a stretching out 4fmiddle age? c
. Mr. Gorooy. Do you mean in the period from 100 to 146?

Mr. Sarasiy. I giess if you get to. 100:you are shfe. . .

Mr. Goroox. I "can’t. answer that! I do not know the answer
obviously. i o -

You are not going to stay a 50-ychr-old for 100 years. Clearly there ,
is going to be deterioration at the time, I believe. Even though some
of the regearchérs that are trying to et at the basie fundamental cause
for aring feel that their work has the potential not only for arresting

" aging, biteden in some aspeots reversing it.

" of your expericnces——-

In other words, bringing back into production certain cells that have -
been taken out of production. That’s & view that is not well sipported
by many people in the field, but nevertheless there are IIlmo({glc who feel
that thers is even that potential for reversing. I don’t Hold mueh hope
for it personally. : o , AL ’

. T would tend to think of biolopical vessus chronological aging. That.
.1s kind of the stretching ut where we extend middf: age for longer
riods of time as disesses are cured and we find more of the reason

or aging. Ther, of course, toward maximum age. as we approach that,

“wvhatever that becomes then the aging process, Lbelicve, is an incvita-

bfli}y forus. +° , . . .
Mr. Sara8iN. Are there aress inthe world where just the opposite
T

Mr. Gorpox. Where people die younger? - T~ 4" 7 .
Mr. Sarasty. Where people dic very fﬁhng and’not b;’cause of 5 pure=
ppverty situation. y o

“Mr. Gorpon. I ‘might mention that onr consnltants in this study |
really required us in‘gne of our early discussions to add a scenario for

. thefUnited States.

We had been tallung about—until that time—about extending cur- . i
t practice, adding new kinds of biomedical technologies, cuging of

techniques that would.have the cifect of
i .Eres?sing fe expectancy. They aSked that we add.one in which life
ctancy would diminish in'the'shoit term. -

"1 As the result df enyironmental d ation and other fa_ci:or:s to se;.e

.| infoymation.;There are places in.
_piiblicized, -~ - PATRE

B z

. Jiad"a chance, to look at it very

that the conseqaenced of that wonld be on demography and social con-

xt, so they were much concerned when they made that su%gestion to
that theTe was, at loast.s possibility-that despite medical advances

d despite increased knowledge about aging, the society that we have

f uilt for onrselves and I view that in the broad context, the environ.
ment in which seciely operates might have the effect of desquaring the
curve, causing a decrease in life expactanc{. So therve is that possibﬁity.
As for specific examples in the world, I'm afraid I don’t have that
= : Eh h’n_;bed *States where certain

s are more prevalent than other places, and that has been well

Mr, Sarasty. Aside from ths diseases, do you think the realities
would be that we would see ag increase I,n i_‘etz;rement ageand social
security, for example? There hag been a suggestion made,and I haven’t
& rofpily, but if the age be raised from.

«




65 to- 6 dithat of ccmrse, has nnmechately dmwn an outcry ef—how
terriblé® ﬁe. i ld’t‘hat nof in facf, lie»z.temhstxc,g "
ake*a distincEion, be&eﬁn age at wluch.
_ter anothér andveadifetiremgnt age.” |
: én people drhw pensio because
ing Ik Qﬁthe.mult of thy and t&g_itgnihem
is an equgting BF thi “ lp dtaye pensions to retiremenit.
a%? when.in Jeality.shat l'mpp is pe le.driwy Pensions and then gset
ther jobs or mq méwhere ¢ gp 0 . different kind of work.
if we are talkin; ..about ré rement in wl?@ense .of not_working any
more, I think %1 vwill i lnerea
With respect o age & which first pdisions are drawp, I think thet
age will increhselns I axd it has beneficial econgmig eensequen s
* as I suggested. The amount t?nat: hag?to ‘iacrgase is atw y mirfo
- mordertomh those . oy :’
'We wi ”hive se eh—-—yo ”g!,nt]éman :gwﬁi have te sgsamh for WiyE.
doir 3 u‘g,o e “he ar,e.eeuntgng on
e,eAr; rettrement. ~f£;jw P
‘ b Mr:1 “?*thafpomt ﬂvefwlﬂl gar fﬁp“mvﬁl\ogc semorc‘it;zens ifd., — b
R #ve dem ted their po] 0 R
= “Mr. SAkﬁsm sAvtuall thsﬂf%mams ‘miost ip emsfed bet-auee of the ﬁ’ :
A T2 d a rate mth't"f‘n(e]rembprs of C’ongms. s ' '{_.
\ srasty, Mr. Biaggiis o:ﬂy2’l%'e&r§ .0 ';1 %o PEINE
";: \Ir. Bmﬁe, Im50. . o : .-‘é,. i; _
T Mr.Sa Do you see a'changing puttelnm depeudency aspe 'le
- |grow oider. T w onclen if you'conld expand*on that.? -

Mr. ‘Goroox. We define dependgney ;;ntmsqxs the ra\'bs;fo ﬂle%‘labor
.- force to thetotal populationsize. | .. “g. B
. We-assumed in our numbécg here" &34 info the lsbor force” B
would not be. much changing sothat e, num’bér of th penden't
who aré young remains more or less pefcentagesvise as e know. itengy.
" The'big cliange ih dependency ratio at the aged sige g% me' abput not

because of the biomedifal tec nelogles, but beeans n as-._x
. gnmption about retiterment a the swin avaaveryc}a
¥ We had scenarios”where %zpendcnoy mtlo~ dropped?be Eow 1, Eﬁﬁ'
ample, As the fesnlt of delayed retirement, as,I recgil‘tHe numbars,
’,t 1d\dépendency ratio dropped from where it gnrreftly is to below 1 .
whek we assumed that retivementige would bede]ayed on the ofdgr ef
5 yetrs by the year 2000. It is about that, that’g;*»not qu lte it, bu
0‘30 that. LA . .
- ‘Now, a8 dependency mtl_gitirops, the ecommy becomes more vlgomue.
ause there ai¢ more consfimers aud the eapability to produce in-
_ ¢ creases beeayise there are more potentia] Workers, The question svhich
rideds additional research, and e su osted t]u,s-research is'whether -
“or not there wil] be jobs, That is a'tergbly difficult, qtlestmn, bug'a key . - |
* question, to answer, The repson it is dificult and iyet key is as follows: |
“" In thig'same time period, while life is being extended threuﬂl}e
mechanisthg T dxscussed,.we will also have increasing gutomati
robotlzatlon beeause of advances,in electronics, for éxample. There will
bo other social forees at work; for example, § participation of womerrin'
the labor farce. IWe-expicf to ]he mguntalne& ata flﬁh level, Will there.
- —-be suﬂiclent ]ebs then m the Jpresence of these kinds of phanges
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When we ar®saying that the benefits of the dt;lal?’éﬂ rgtirement are , -
so grent. for tho individunl as well #s fpr society, will soéiety be able,to™ » -
_ cope with the:work requirements? That remnins uiansywéred, but im-

portant. And it ig this which gives risc tothe dependency ratio. - K
Mr. Sarastx: Do ypu see any problgm beyond that with the entrent
actiop in Congress 1 removing the cap on retirement or just raising
_itin the pri\-‘afc sector? . L R - ®
Mr. Goroox. Well, I think that is a necessary atep and leads ns cep- -
tainly in the direction that  am spggestingherge « %2 - ., .~
When we did this study we presumed that such action wouldbe taken® - .
beeause it scemed so Inherent y'fi)gicnl and unnédessary. .. :
¢ . Mr. Buasey. Congress will always be responsible. . e o .
Mr. Sarasiy. Thank f‘on very mmeh, Mr. Gordon. I think.yourdesti- |
-——-—mopy has been-mast enlightergng’ for those of us on the committee. :
¢ ., Mr. €hairman, thank you:. - T .
Mr. Biacer. Thank you. st I S L
Mr, Gornox. Qentlemen, Iet me extend my invitation aggin should . -
« You want additional information from that stiidy or want tq talktous -~ & -
agnin, we would be delighted. - 0 ) Ce
" "Mr. Bragor. T am'sure we willdodo. - Lyt

The next witness is Dr. Harold Sheppard. Dy, Sl}eipard is the
senior researcher for the ‘Arnorican Institutes for' Research, and dirve:
tor of the Center on Work and Aging. From 1939 to 1961 Dr.Sheppar
was the research director and the staff director for the first Senate |, -
Commjtteegon Aging. He has written extensively onathe isspe of work -

u

.

Y
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and refirement. The books thiat he has written ineinde ¢ dn’gh-izﬂ

»

other bodk, “The!Graying of Working America,¥ 18'in tho process of
-being. published. His works are consjdered clasgies itr the field of aging.” -
. ' - ' A ,
N STATEMENT OF HAROLD L. SHEPPARD, DIRECTOR; CENTER ON
_WORE AND AGING, TCAN INSTITUTES FOR RESEARCH, °
o < WASHINGION, B.C. v T AR
/Dt Sieerarnp. I {\; leome this op‘pé'rttfnit;y to testify thiz :lﬁo:-niné, ’ ~

Congressman, and oné b#the first points Iwant to make i in the l4st
. payagraph of my forma) pregentation which says: . '

Gerontology” éﬁ “Too Old To Work, Ted Young To Retire,” An-

t - A

- -3

B A

One of the primary purposes of indulging jn infelligent pottragals of what lies |
in the future is to prepare society and Individunls now for the various Kinds
and degrees of adjustment that will have to be made by the tie that future: -
becomes the present, Futurism 13 not 4 ‘tun:and-games ‘exercige far . dilettontés
or abistract Intellectdfils pursuing jdeas for-the sake of ideas. If is an imdispensa-
ble- necessity tor responsible declsionmakers who are éoncertied’ with the best

- ar - . ", rs ra

. Interesta of their soclety and economy. .. . .

g s o S
S¢ T want to eongratuinte tho committee for hiolding these kindsof |
hearings and ray major hope is that the members of this commiftee
when they act in their roles in the legislnfive committees a8 opposed to
this committee, which is nonlegisiative, that tley will ‘appl{ the view-
points and facts and projections that are presented in these hearings.
, My summary tomments regarding the futnge of aging%in'.Amtzric_n' ’
will focus primarily on the economie dimension, especially regarding = .-
employment as reguested by the subcommittee staff, Let-me point out
. that I am going to be dealing,with this subject within sort oP the con-
¢ .- “text of three major criterid. . e m .t
. ! = . . N : 3
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One of them having to do with the composition of the demographic
changes; second, the costs, or to put it ancther way the supportive :
caiaaclty of the economy; and, third, that va%lje and intangiblearéa © .
ealled ‘values, ineluding the stress we put on héalth in our sbelety. I
. don’t think it is a fashion and it is nothing we are going to change. It
has great implications for this whele issue. - o

Weo are, not talking here about waiting uritil a person hits 63 ox 70
or 3 Lo improve his or her health, we are talking about improving .
the health status of infants, teenagers, young adults, and middle-age
people all of which then lead to a greater %?Pulation of lgall'oplc living
older than “we had cxpect:ﬁ them to live.” That’s what the story is all

. about and some of the points I want to concentrate on herex, .

It is fascinating that if you take a look at the Census Bureau projec-
tiens for the poputation 65 and over just to the year 2000—you.dook
at the publications they put out in 1970, they said that in 2000 there
would bo 28.8 millien .H)eople 65 and older. . Yo

. 'Then 5 years later they put out another report, it was a eatching up

. with the mortality rate changes and said, no; it is going to be 30.6
ngillion. ;Then within 114 yoars they had to come out with another
report which showg’ that it is going to be—in terms of projections
now--31.8 millioxt people 65 and over by the year 2000, , - o

Mind you, some T years ago—in fact ohly5 years ago bécanse they
repeated the same figures in 1972—only 5 yvears ago they said there |
would be 28.8 iillion people 65 and over,and the most recent publica-
tioit from the same Burean says it would be 31.8..That's'a 3 million

* underestimate just 5 years ago. I iusist at the risk of being aceused of
stieking my nbek aut too far that that's going to be sort of a constant ,{H‘
error plienomenon because we are ot wiring in enough the improve:

- ments in the mditality rates at the upﬁjer ages. | - LY
s et me caine back to the demographi

ie development. . .

MryBiaccL. Would it also be another fact of the eontinued imptove-

. ‘ment 0% health in"all of those zero, age zero writeup on Some life .
expectaney? v L ot ‘.
Or: SuEPPARD. Yes. Well, the difference in the estimates done 5 years
ago versus now have td do with the faet that mortality rates in the
upper age groups have declined primarily, which is the sort of thing
that Dr. Gordon mentioned, reduction in eardiovascular ailments as.”
An influence on mortality and accidents and the cardiovascular redue-
tions that occurs essentially, if I am not mistaken, ameng.men, I.won’t
. get into many of the explanations for that, they have to do with some .
- ]oft’the,,'lt.ems' that Dr. Gordon mentionedy I will come back to them
‘. later. T . . -

I mentioned that one of the-eriteria ¥ want tg with has to do
with the demography althongh I insist that the body Sount approach
‘to the topie of aging is not suffeient. We also need to lafdiy about the

" changing social and cultural definitions of what is meant by “old.”
What is'meant by “aging” and the “aged.” ‘ T,

In this connection'I believe we are in the midst of a redefinition of
‘what 13 0ld and what is aging, It will not be.the first time in the his-
tary of Western society. I had qeeasion & few months.ago to réad some-
LNz aboutt censns data in Florence, Italy, in whieh “working age pop-

- ulaori ended at the age of 50.” . .- .
Ahybody over 5 then was called old and not by in large eonsidered
eligible to bevorking, too decrepit. On the other end of the scale, re-
" o - oy i . s
) u
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member in onr own society yon looked,at Inboy foree statistics of 30 °
and 60 years ago the tables said “Population 10 and over engaged in
the labor force.” Now, it 1516 and over if you look at the Labor
Department rts,Just o few yearsagoit was 14, - ‘
~ We are conftantly in the midst of redefinitions of what is old and
: :fvhat, ;1§ the age at which people quote, “ought to be entering the labor
orce. . : ’ , ' .
Another thing, certain age groups in onr societv are beginning to
resist, being labeled and therefore treated negatively as old, especially
insofar as that term evokes negative comotations. Before too many
years come to pass.and I think long before the vear 2025 it is quite
possible that persons 60 to 63, compayed to the 60 or 65 year olds say
of 10 or 20 yearg.~will not accept the label again to the degree that
society continues to nge the term negatively. ' -
Some of the reasons. f8r this have to do with the improvement in
educational levels, the discrepancy between the people 55 to 64 vis-a-
vis their mean edneation todav is not too different from the mean edu-
cational level of people 23 to 34 today, but if you go back just 10 years
ago the diserepancy was much wider. . .
__The other crific factor involved, of conrse. is the hiealth factor which
Dr. Gordon has mentioned to the degree that terms sueh 23 “old” and
“aged” connote substantial detriments in physical and mental,activity.
The application of those terms is such persons will be more unrealistic
anll irrational than fhey are today.
One more point abont this proposition of expression here and it is
. one of my favorite obsessions in hobbyhorses.

In terms of demography we sinply have to get out of the statistical
reporting and the linguistic habit of using this category of a 65-plus
population. It is a sloppy category especlally when can;iylln ont not

e

‘only research, but policymaiking decision regarding this or prob-

lems ofaginge : . . L
An 85 year old is not. the smine as a 63 year old any more than a 45

3

year old is the snme as a 25 year old, 4t least not yet. Nevertheless, per-
. song 65 years old are lumped into the Same category as persons 85 and’
older in most'of these statistical repo Uf gervices. ‘

Now, I have a table here, table one that indicates that the. 65 to 69
population as a proportion of the total 65-plus population in 1975 was
over 36 percent Eut by the year 2000 will go do¥wn to only 29 percent.
The other end of the scale, take a look at the 85-plus population. In
15?75 there was only 8 percent of the ﬂ%tal 63-plus population but by
the year 2000 they will make wp-atleast,.I say, 12 peregnt of the total
so-called aged population:™ _ _

X say at Iéast becanse I expect by the year 2000 we will find that we
ha\'aéagen today underestimating what the final figure will be by the
rear 2000, ) - ‘ oo -

’ Incidentally, betwben 1978 and the year 2000 the number of pepple .
85 and over will have increased by 106 percent. I don’t think it is Ifl?vch )
more than 40 percent for “the you‘i;?a_.%ed” 65t0 69.. - " .
All of this means that the so-called “older population” will be géttine
older. not really larger. Now, one of the economic implications of this
shift in the age compositich of the oldef popuilation is that the cost ¢f
. snpporting that popnlation will be mounting to a level and at a yate
higher than indicated by the typical stndy that simply tekes thet 63-
- plus popylation clag.siﬁcatidn and multiplied by some estimateduper-
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capita cost-to arrive gt an estimate of the total aggregate cost to the
sociery and the economy of providing for that group. The cost will be
greater, in reality, and the question anses what steps are we taking now
to prepare for those additional costs. .o T

An increasing populafion in the very ‘old age group, those who I
think by and large we can agree cannot be expected on the whole to be
in the JI(al'mr- force will require additional expenditurese for a wigle -
variety 6f costly services and these will typically have to be borne by
Federal, State, and local government tax sonrces. . TR

Frihe future a lower proportion eof this very old age group will have
children that could be counted on to support them and by the way, such
children as 1here will be will themselves be in their sixties. More and
more You are seeing 60-year-olds with 85-year-old parents——

Mr, Biaca. But they will still be working ¢ '

. Dr. Snepranp ﬁcontimlinfr]. Still alive, They will be forced to con-
tinue working is the puneli line in this whole address. .

JAsaroughindex. the ratio of 60- tb 63-yYear-olds throngh the 83-plus

population will be ehanging dramatically. .. .
. Can we expect those 60~ to 64-year-old children to be able to pay for
much of the support sersices for their even older parents especially if
we continue eurrent retirement age poliey, if most of those 60- to ¢4-
- year-olds are retired and are out of the labor force. ' ,
Can we afford to be complacent now, I meau working out projections
.of varions payroll taxes and taxable salary basis as well as cost es-
timateshi.private pension plans. Only 23 years from now, never mind
20-25 which is nearly 30 vears from now, those projections do not t‘aki'
into accouit the increased aging of the 65-plus population classifieation.
This questiof is especially eritical if eurremt retirement age poliey
previfils or if retirement at oven earlier ages than now prevalent is
charaeteristic of the fime between now and the year,2000. :
Troman economic stand pointthe cost of supporting a growing popu-
- lation of nonsorking persons 60 to 65 and'older will have to come from’
the working lTE:opulaticnn. and would require an ever-growing economy
with a proditive capacity providing the resources for that support.
=7 L am not 4s optimistic, apparently. as Dr, Gordon is on the future
«. of our prodnctire capacity and I don’t think—when vou take a look
at prodrn’lctivit . Tates of productivity increase for éxample, at least
sinee 'World ¥ar IL and‘table 6 indicates that, you find that daring
the most recent past vears the annnal average productivity increase is”
one-half-of that of the post-World War II period and it suggests that
_the growth in the capacity may not be commensurate with the nceds,
- Thie futnre of aging in Araerica ag in othet industrialized societies is in
n very large part contingent on the future of onr productivity hase,
That will be determined in turn. but the costs of such important itefns
. asencray and resources in that future, cogts which will grow not only
heeafi=e of any shortages. but also begsise more countries that arve =
heginning to compete witfy us for agcess to and coptrol over whatever
that «anply will be, - .7 . -
Numliers ofipeople. to repeat. are not the only consideration involved
in this. Fog example. thego-called older population, as they reach what
wo now call retirement age, acéept retirément incomes at a Jevel fypieal
of retirement incomes today. even if measnred as a proportion of*pre-
retirement earnings. Will. for example. the remaining working popu--
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lation continue as in the past te honor the social contract between
generations? ° ' . T - S,
-~ Now, this brings me to one of the points made in the sammary report
by the Futnres Group. namely, that the averaze retirement age. may
~have to bo delayed to prevent great economie problems, Even withont
any radical life extensions. . o
. Mr. Buagor. Doctor, I wonltl like® to interject at.this point, in deal-
ing with the premise that you made in the light of what we have |
. Tearned as a committee. and it may not be m fact sustained.gnd that* .
is that. people will be retiring at 60. In fact. yon were present ithen
we referred to the legislation that the Fonse just passed which shonld |, |
abolish mandatory retirement. All the indications are.that people
will work, if they are peamitted to werk beyond the acedpted age.
and the impact on the economy will not be as larze 85 you suggest. -
. I believe that in fight of the ¢ver-incregSing life expectancy that'
adjustyments will be made in the pension system ; that adjistments will ="
be made in entire retited income area as a matter of absolute necessity
and as amatter of logie, - ) o ) RN
If we stay ot the current status, the current age then I would agyee .
that theimpact would be monpmental. R R
r. Supprarn, The législation you are reférring to pgssed by the -
Hause and .we are praving that tf‘l’e Senate will pass if, does make a.
.sl§aht*dent in the problem, I am all in favor of it. The nuinber of peo- +

Pl who actually wait to retire until the inandagory.retirement-age. is
not very greak, but it still intreases, therefore, the opportunity for
those who want tg. and are able to work l_)e\y'cnnd that so-called com-

halsotv age. to work, s e T . &,
Mr. Bracor. Yonareright. = * 4 7 S .
Dr. Surerarp. Tlie critical issue. T believe, is the issne of early re-
tirement prior to 65, That's going to be the issue and that is the hotter
potato to deal with these days becanse that gets into some issues in-

? volving the desire of pegple to retire as'enrly as 60, Tt gets*into issnes |
and I think jt will charge atdeast at State and locel governinent,levels
beeanso part pf their pension problems have to dolwith early retire:
ment, bnt without any actuarially reduced pension. =~ °  © .

The same thing. in the private peasion field. A Baiker’s Trust study

- recently showed and from 1980 tg 1973, ¥ bglieve thers twa$ an inereage
in the number of plans wifh rather en;rly vetivement and with no ac- ..
tnarial redneed pension e vel..This can’t go on forever especially when -

» yon are‘in a denrographic society. Y o

Mr. Braaer. Well, I 4hink ¢he .whéle {mnsiqn icture is being res * .
viewed across the board and it is like killing tﬁépgoose that laid the . ..
golden ege, It is poing to blow up in our faces, But we have had testiv.

_ mony which eonfirm3 what yon have stated that many people retire
.7~ before the maximumage. - .- . oo N

: Now, the question was do they do thiat so they can prepars far-gome-
thing else rather than jnst be serft out to pasture? - v ‘ ;o

\ Dr. Sreeeann. Well-this is the faseinating arca of resegrel®coni-

L troversy among researchers. Fhere is one group that concentrates on
* «the role of raising the retived social security benefits ag an inducemnent .

for the legal labor, force. I think councentrating on such factors as

health status, previons unemployment experience, and the naturc of

- T

el




4 L e e .
the work they are performing, the lousier the job, ever if it is pa mﬁ
$6 an hour; tha.greater the desire to get the blank out of therejand
I have done some empirical work among workers on that. )

People as young as 40, if they are in a-job that is called unenriehed
or HepFived in terms of intrinsic content, I think something like 50
ptreent of them in my study said they would retire immediately if
.they conld be sure of getting enough ioney as opposed to the same
age grou[l> working in ‘much better, jobs, all blue collar workers
incrdentally. - N L
I arty very much interestetl in this whole.fictd of improving qualit {
of worklife, not only becanse.of productivify reasons, but because
think it will Kave an imli:act on the retirément rate, however impercep-
tible, but everything will help. : . °
T also think that some of tEese demographic factors themselves suel: -
* as an ipcrease in percentage of the young-old with parents still alive
will be a factor, retarding the Surrent trend‘toward early retirement.
I still haven’t looked enotigh, however. into the research done by the
economists who concentrated on the role of social security benefits and
£ even gv ivate penston benefits as incentive to get out of the la_Bor force.
% . - Now. as you know, there are some countries which at various times

and-for economic reasons have given incentives to people to stay in
3 the Tabor force. Norway, for example, the last time I looked this up
. #ives o S-percent. bonus to workers who will continue. working, per-
" year, after thaage of 67, . . . o .
Now, we have something like that under social security.’a big 1-per-\"!
cent Bohus whieh I don’t think anybody knews about and whieh lsn’t.L‘ ;

#

% .enough an¥way toinduce workers to stay in thelabor force.
.-~ By the way, I'd.love Congress to find,out how many workers really
_know thege 15 that 1~|,>ereent, quote “Lorfus. to stay in the labor force:
for each year after 65.” vLE .
Fipally, Congressman. beeausg 5o few people Have come to our side, -
I wanf to indieate iny generalffapport for the statdient made, and
that is cel'tainjp,the intent of the statement made by the Scerctary
. d __.of Commeree, Juamta Kreps, who started a lot of fuss when she made.
me statement 1n recent weeks. | Lo ,
I don't know how many people know that she is one of the greatest
experts in the eeonomics of aging. That wasn't the publicity given to
s her when she wasg nominated and confirmed, Lut we worlced togethex
in thlefﬁem. We are’either coauthors so.ngturally I have to cone t§ ~
wer defonge, - - C . P
*¢ . The real-challenge is liow do we move towgard that day—How do we
 implement the-process.of raisjug.average retirement age? I didn’t say
+, it.3> going to be done in somé cute:simple inechanistic manner, T am®
o qgifh aware of all of th institntional obstacleg nnd emotional reaction
» - T to that, butd also sﬁf'_@ iny, prepaved statement thal before the end ™
of this century people whoe will be ingwing towayd what we eall yev
tiring ago will takie anothicr look at'the econonic dimension, nefer
mind the psychological dide, andidiy *“Tley, can I afford to retire at
60 and live for another 17 o1 18 fears on the pension level I am not
s0 sure will eontinue’to keep. fixe\n half the style to which 'want to, .
be accustomed ¥ - . . . g
Mr., Sarasin, Are Fou sgying then that there is a gronp cqse to be
made fol increasing.the retirement age for social securtty?

"
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Dr. Saepparn. Yes, I'm not saying I know how it can be done im-
mediately, bnt once we recognize the need then I think we shonld put
our brains to work on developing the implementational side. ~
One point I want to émphasize is that it all comes'down to the in-
eonvenient fact that for most of us unless we chose millionaire parents
or won a precious lpttery ticket,employment is and will continne to be
the best way of adsuring an-adequate income. Given the joint effect
of sucl factors as demographic change, progress in health status, infla-
tion, and sluggish growth in the pjoductive base of an economy, includ-
ing the growing costs of providing energ’y and resources to maintain
that productive base and the growing recognition of the eonstitntional
and moral grounds for not ‘using year of birth as the condition for
makifgg hiting and retirement decisions for older \mericans, niy
=cenarid for the futuve of aging #h Amerier would include a gradual
but definite shift in age-at-retirement policles in the United States,
towards raising average retirement age. R
Lalso think, inc¢identaily. thaf other industrialized countries like our
own'will be'in the throes of refonsidering and changing age-at-retire-
ment practices and far the same reasons. e,
. Now, there are other alternative futures bnt X am not going to men-
tion them here unless there is more tire, byt there are more Strange
#Lovian and I den't think they are going to take place. They are just
cnteto discuss but not plausible’ enough realistically.
Mr. Bracor. Thank vou, Br. Sheppard. ) 1 o
The Secretary of Commerce, Kteps. certainly made a very provoca-
tive suggestion wher she indicated we might have to raise the age of
eligibility for social seengity to 68. I want you to know that it has
re\'erbe-r%ions around the world and I mean literally around the worid.
* Dr. SnEpParp. 1 was in 2 plane to Furope when I read it, yes.
Mr. Bracor. That’s'literally aronnd the world. o
" What is interesting is.that she has that bgckground and it @
amazing_—— o o Cy
Dr. Stigpearo. May I mention also, Congressmay, that she shared &
very“signiicant study that ties in with what the Fitures Group has
done for the Nationa! Secience Foundation on the implications of the
stationary population for the aged 'of America and X would recommend
that the staff get ahold of that repork It is & series of important sig-
+ njfieant economic docwinents,as part of the total and part of which we
lied on in writing our book on the.coming erisis in retirement age
~~policy in America, that book you referred to ealled “The Graying of
America,” It is a very important document. ~ o “
This is another indication .of her backgrobnd in this field. .
: . Mr. Brager. Yon raised the point that also has to deal with the im-
Cy e l[_'l:a_ct, the potentiafimpact of that point. It would seem to me that we
. ... .. have pension systems, that is sotinl secrity and health .progﬁgls and
they might well berjeopardized with the increaged life'e:;(Fect Y-,
.+ Todsay the elderly I think are competent.in the knowledge that tliese
. systems are productive evén though perhaps not as adeqnate -as they
et . might, How dp you think they would react or let me put it a«lifferent
. ~way, Can the elderly of tomoirow feel agsecute? w -
SO ¥ h'r'l{ BEPPARD. That's a todgh question. That’s & ‘profound question.
dn o, Lt 111"""3":"-_",, ot .o L."'. . L e . T .
“Mr. Bragot, I any asking it of ' mitn of depth: ¢ .
Y A e : '
‘ * I - . [ ) ‘c 8
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Dr. Suyeparp, Thank you, I'll stick my neck outagain. |
ryim are talking abbsl;t people in t.h‘e%r kixties, early sixties—-

. Mr. Bugar Well, they are middleaged. | '
Dr. Saepparn, Tfney are middle now, right, c
The very old, let’s say arbitrarily 80 and é5 or older, I believe agam

it comes down to different contingencies. If we have 2 productive capac-
ity which includes, I believe the necessity’ for lqvplx'mg many of the
ple in the labor force whom we'have not considered being in the
abor force today, those young aged, I think they can look forward to
t deal of security, " Lo
_I might point out and I should have said this at the beginning, I+
have my valued bias as follow$: I am cohcerned that we provide n
truly table and humane level of living for the-truly aged of this -
count !ﬁe only way that I can see that we can guarantee that and I
guess, if Fou want to, you can say I'm speaking of my own future, I'm
worrying about my own future when I get 80 or 85; it will require that
there be this largé productive base of people working to make possible
that humane level of living when I get into my eighties, eighty-five.
T'ex concerned ebout-that generation of ge l¢ who will reach that age
long before I do is how I got into this field, before I started reaching
upper middle ag T : |
given that'scenario then I would say they have nothing to worry

about, but agsin it assumes or requires that we make some basic policy, ¢

clm%ea regarding retivement age and it assumes that we will not get
tog far down the level of that e;%?:ﬁport base I am tallting about wh%:eh
rea(l;{de >ends on access to energy and resources but ot too exorbitant
ac * -0 . B

_Mr, Bracar. I perceive, as I listen, in the year 2025 a very large seg-
ment of pgpulqj:ion being elderly and almost with relation to that
socislized Utopian approach l;‘{ government because I don’t.think the
private sector ¢an deal with it, so thé onsibility will be irn-
inent’s to deal with thoge ¢lderly, frail élderly, if you will, the non-
working-elderly. - - . : - RS
d‘ I think it will’be'n trpmendous burdeh but it is one that we capnot
eny. . - i Lo -

' DE Sereepanp. I would like to believe that we will be' willing to share
‘with the nonwoiking elderly which means perhaps a reduction in the
rate at which we #te—the working population-—ineluding our meterial
wéll being, because e might.have to make a few little sacrifices, To-
-some peo}:lle-'t]_mey might "be considered major, only 'ane car instead of
and thingslike that. ., -~ . . ' .

Mr. Samasty: Will the chairman yield? b

- Mr, Bracor. ' Yeg Co L . S
© Mp. Sarastx. What do you see as the impact not on the frail elderly
poplation but on the younger working population who look at that,
prospeat. Fhat is something we are really not paying any'attention
to either..Are they mﬁée'be’gilﬁn’g to make those saerifices? . * -

Dt. SrrwppAro. Thave been frustrated, Congressman, in trying to get

to
informution from any survey group that hds already done that works
T havobéén more irﬁgltqt\eda'?in 'my%fforts to get s}oﬁ:&; rescarch money
- to.do-it- mvself.. AN L e
.=+ I should mention, if Py not mistaken, the American Couneil on
-, Life Insirance however, has heen doing a Séries of periodic surveys
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*» /~hat partly gets at this issue. They hate been doing them periodicdlly-
and ff-ey 1ave it by n@e groups. b} \

" 1 am further interested, however, ih what would happen to those
. opimions if you had some orientatio #program about wliat this all

+ - means instead of just knocking on somebody’s door and saying : “Hey,
are you willing to pay $150 more startipiz next yearto take care of that
increased aging population and maybe $300 the next year and so on.”

I mention specific dollar figures because I have seen some studies
like the one done by Lou Harris for the National Council on Aging
and I serve on that research advisory committee, which asks them sort
of vufue questions like: “Do you think the American population
should support the oldel;[iﬁﬁulation 7 Now, who is going to say “no”
to that? ’ ) : . .

"Mr. Bras6r. Intil the time comes to pay. , .

Dr. Saxerarn. Well, they didn’t get specific enough, that’s right.

Are {ou,willtng to pay gl(;e than you are paying now out of your
take-home pay to provide for the elderly. You have to be specific as
to the dollar amounts or as a proportion of income. )

Mpr. BragoL I get a rising sentiment from young peopleswho don’t
see any reward or benefit from thé moneys they are contributing at
their early age and they laok forward to decades of contribution with .-
no benefit and many of them choose not to enter {he social seenrify’
gystem. ° ' . - \ -

- Dr. SaEeparp. Do you mean they have an option? .
- "Mr. Braaar. Well, they haven’t been trying. - _

Dr. Smepparp. If they have the option they don’t choose to enter it.

Well, again I would like—I wbuld hope that the Social Security-
Administration. start a pitblic educsation. profram ebout what is so-
cial seenrity, what is it all about and how does it finance and-T'inean

_tell it the way it is. Also, if I may just add anothey point, I think a lot
of the emotionalism and controversy about the so-called “test. or earn-
ings test is partly due to the misunderstanding among the American
people about the nature and the original purpose of the retirement test
and I fault the Social Security Administration for not adequately edu-

. ' cating the American Eeople, about why it'was put in in the first dplace

“fgnd lwhy it has to be kept in even though you might change the dollar

vel. ‘ . -y

But my main point is that I feel that™we are in store for orat least
we have the need for 2 massive public edueational prograii about the ™

. naturé of .the social secarity system and.partly to' delay the fears. I
know one study I saw by the Council of Lifmllflsu ce showed a
rather large percentage worried about, the status of the'social security
system. If I am not mistaken, the younger the age group, certain of
the age groups are making the gréatest fear. They ought ¢o confirm

- - what they.are saying. - . c
L+ Mr. Sarasiy. They would a0t be able to e paid by the time the;
® . camearound? . Lo U . _ SO
- Dr. Sferparp. 'Well, they know.that it is based on transfer of pay-
ments from the working popuiation at the ¢ime they are retired then - =
they ought“to be concerned.about Miﬁg sure that there are a lot of
", 7 ‘people working to pay for their pensions. . o ‘
. Back to my otiginal theme or sermon. e

.
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Mr, Sarasiy.'Just with that last commeft when you sy that today’s
WO rk'in% popuiation sitould be corcernegfthat thers be a large number
of people working when'they retire. - # -

Where do you seeithose jobs comiyg from, and I ask this hecause -
thére is a great deal:of pressure heyb to somehow provide all of these .
government jobs, Which is anothgk transfer payment with the idea
that you can providé all of thes# jobs for. people, productive jobs at
taxpayers’ expense, I just wongler 1f you séé that as a solution to the
problem or even part of the gblution or if we should be trying to do
more to create an incontive fof jobs in the private sector?

Dr. Sreerarn. Well, if Ifan give a wishy-washy answer, Congress-
man, I think we have to dfboth, but I don’t think we are doing enough
of cither. I happen to Jelieve that in looking at some input-output
tables' put out by the Cgmmerce Department that were published in the -
employment and trajfiing report to the President by the Labor De-
partient, it gho e number of jobs directly created in the.private
sector as thefresulf of purchases by, State and local goveérnments of
goods and sefviee# from the private séetor. . . =

when they started doing these kinds of statistics or thess
ufligs, through 1975.and 1976 it shows that the greatest ratg,
frowth fiffirtvate sector Jobs can be traced to the purchase of goods
and servicdf by Stateand loeal governments, greater than in the other
i going on that help make private sector jobs, - .
Now, ghPrt 1s a balance that has to be struck, but one of tho lessonsy
. T drasy/fipm that kind of analysis is that if.we do want to help the
privajl sgetor, maybe we ought to help the public sector a little. I am
fifvet of a lot of the private-direct employinent incentives for

phting fore jobs as well as some of these tax changes that help

gast pupchasing power. I.won'’t get into the question of how do you do

fhat wighout aggravating inflation problems, Maybe we will just have
to makg ‘[)Segu,r minds which is more impértant. e

T ha¥e been, in this connection, working as a sort of technical adviser
for the Committee-of Economic Development, a group of businessmen
who arte coming out with a report soon on problervs of disadvantaged

. workers including older workers. That’s basically why I'm on that out-
. gide consultynt group stafl. i . Vo

These th%gvs are among the recommendations, the mix ¢f recom-
‘mendations by that group. Incidentally, that is a business ug)e and
they came out in favor of abolishing—1I think I am saying this before
I am supposed &o, it 18 not released yet. Off the record-—they are coming

- out For abolishing mandatory age despite groups like the Business
Roundtable and the Chamber of Commeree and so on. Sa don't let them .,
. skare you, those other groups, . C . o
" Mr. Sarasiv. When you can ‘point to the figures that indicate the .
growing stable. of the governments that are doing more in purchasing
from private dector, that—are you saying then that that is the red-
son to add more people to the public sector employment roles? Isit their
purchases or the purchases of government itself¢ L
Dr. Srrepeano. It is the purchases of the government of goods and
= services from ths{-privh.te sectory. - S : i -
L0 Mr Sarasiv, You arenot taiking about’ government employees?
Dr, Szzerard. No; I'm rigt talking about the effect of purchasing. *
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Obvionsly there is a balance that his to be struck. I don't
have reached the badance. s

I mention this statistical-ﬁnding, tho\igh, hecause we have been in-
dulging too much of either/or thinking\ that is, is either the private
seetor or the publig sector that we are goije to invest in and that lelp-
ing one hurts the éther. It is not eompletely true if these fignres mean -
anyvthing and T hope they mean soinething. '

There is another aspeet to this theugh, engressiman. There jx ap-
other alternative future: namely, maybe welwounld have to have more
work sharing if worse comes to worse. I don’ like to thinlk of that. =0
that we have less inequity in the distributiqn of job opportnnitie-
among the generations and I am eertainly aghinst using t]lfe ate of
birth of a person’s birth cextifieate as a eritéfion for determining
whether he or she shonld have a job, back to the Wandatory retirement
fge issue, ‘ v . ]

Mr, Sarasy, Yes. LT ‘ .- *

How do vou define work sharing? . ] .

Dr. Suerparp. Well, there ar¢ & variety of patterns heve aud.}@niu.

* one of the best doenments I have seen is an internal ocmneg‘f of the

think we

w

Labor Department. ‘ N

There are come exierimems going.on in Wiseensin, Yoo, which the
Labor Department i5 keeping tabson. * _ .

People working say. 30 hours instead of 40 homys anygl some age
groups perhaps splitting it 50-50. Some of the rechiced flexXime work-
places involve more than one person working in what 1
called one person’s job. More voluntary part-time emnployving
‘emphasize the word“voluntary” and pa large part of that. maket for
voluntary part-time work is in the upper-age group. That is asyini
they have stme other resonrces. ,

I think we are—Dr. Gordon mentioned saine otlier scenarios inyols-
ing also this notion of infermittent in-and-out-of the Jabor foreé, he
called them sabbaticals. Since Dr. . Juanita Kveps has heen writ

« on that for abouts13 years herself and is very yueh interested in thif.
I really am in no pesition to futurize about what thosé pattern
will be when it cornes fo work sharing. It might be a temporary
phenomenon. * Lo . -

Mr. Barasin. Doetor. if lareer numbere of poo_pjr_;ﬁlw more time
for themselves. what is the future of voluntarism? Wil this he 2

.growing seetor of onr enlture and how many serviees will be offered
throngh that means? & | - : o0,

_ Dr. Syrerann. T von had told me vou were going to ask nie that
question I wonkil have come prepared for au auswer. '

What xow are saying is if more people have more time will there
be greater\apportuntiy for voluniarisnt, So far T have-heen working
on-the philesophy that the list of our unmet needs in this eduntry is
so.great.that we can uze all the volunteers can_get our hands on.
At the same time,a Jot of those unmet needs 'shonld he filled hy the

. people who need the monty, they shonld he performed or earvied out
by the peonle swho need th_e/fﬁc'ihey and that comes out to the jssue of
“Saeating johs forincome réagons.’ L A v
“Kenin, T think there is: enongh in it for both the.true stricfly.
defitd volunteer wheyines not work for afi income gs opposed to the
pait-tif person who voluntarily works part fime but for income.
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I am in the iidst 6f another project for the Department of Labor
trying to find out if worse comes to warse what are all the unmet
public needs? We are doing this by going to lecal commumities and
every time our field staff comes back our list gets longer and longer,
Thave told them te stop. . ) . .

Mr. Sarasx. Are you running into the practical problem of the
public service uniGiis, the ot her organizations that are out there saying
you can't do that work with either low-paid or this type in receiving
people, you must meld tlfem into the work foree which'is there. D you
see that preblem? . "N

Dr. Suepparo. Well, this project we are not lodking for it so we,
have not found it. but naturally being active in thid ficld of rescarch
ot public employment we have run acve=s that argument and the
argument of substitution which is a serions problem certainly when
State and local governmgents arve in great fizcal troukle, it is hard for
them to—it is hard to criticize them for filling say a traffic ticket
giversouter, a position with a neiv person aftershaving laid. off some-
one who has been doing that for 5 years. It is hard to criticize them
for wanting to use that money and instead of rehiring that formerly
employed person. But that's what’s called substitution problems.

Mr. Sarasry, We see that a lot in the CETA program and also the
Welfare Reform Committee which is getting into this area of sub-
mitting point four jobs and what kind of Jobs are they going to be
which has yet been answeved. by the way. .

Thank you, Mr. Chdirman. - . L

Dr. Suerraro. We'dre getting into today’s problems instead of the
futnre and you don’t want to worry abont today’s problems. .

Mr. Bragar. Wé have been joined bySthe gentlelady from New Jersey,
Congresswoman Helen Meyner who is a most valuablle member of this
committee and she provides the balance in tlie gender of this committee
todayinitsmorehumancapp\roach. - E )

Mrs. Meyyer. Thank you, Mr. Chaitman. P

Speaking of gender I wanted to talk abont women in the future.
We know that more and mére women are joining the swork foree, it
las doubled recently. We know that women.nsually ontlive men, the
* statistics are very high and I assume that elderly womer=will make up
a big part of the working segment. Arg there any iniplications fo this.
Have you thonght about how this fits In.to the future®TIs there any-
thing specifie that we should be looking at or thinking about? ~_ =

For example I kndw that women on soeial seonTity get less benefits
than men. That is an inequity that we are rﬁﬁﬁ:@’mr}oct . -

Dr. Suepparn. Well fo the degreethat thev have hecome £ull Time
membclors,of.thc Iabor force and do get equi wof t;}[]nkigds of jobs
they ¢ t into with commensurate pay, a nt diserepaney--
shionld d'lgs‘:lppear. l}ﬁ' : . b C 7
. My focus has been prinarily on the fact thatinthiat very old age
group T talked abont earlier, sax the 85-plas group that are dispro-
portionafely going te be women. and I havent played aronnd with
any calenlations. but eertainly by the year 2000, 23 yeaks from now. we
aro-tatking a wotnen now in their gixties, we can't expect them °
to have had m ork experiéfice as the hasis for having adeguate -
social seenrity incqme, Many of them will be widows and they don’t
get completelv the ame amonnt as before when their husbands were
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alive, So the challenge of supporting.that ever-growing very old
population which is getting bigger tlgan they thought it would get, that
was-part of my earlier presentation, the challenge that is going to be *
even greater when you keep in mind we are talking disproportionately
about women, o ; ) )

One other aspect of women in the labor force that I would like to
mention and that is when, many of us talk about this change in the
demographic composition and use these arbitrary categories; the work-
ing age population.versus nontrorking age population#o get o depend-
ency ratio, it is very often pointed out gmt the rising labor, force
patticipating rate of women will be an offset to much of the early
retirement phenonrenorrand the large number of old people who retire
and they don’t die. . .

I have not seen the study yet that indicates that the rate of increase
has come to the point when it will be a complete offset. In fact, one
of the® recent reports by, the Congressional Budget Office on the
short-term and long-term financing prohlems of social security makes
the point that we cannot count comjpletely on this rising participation,
rato to be a complete offset to the support costs. That’s another
dimension I think isimportant. |} - o

I don’t know if I have answered {your question or not? _

Mrs. Meyxek. Yes, I think you have made some good points, It is
a little early to tell, really, what [the sifuation will be by the year
2000, Thank you. - = * _°. . o R ,

;- Dr. Surpearp, Can, I give one story that had taken place in 1976
. ‘and, 1977 instead of the year 2000 pr 2025, ‘ o
 There is a System of .cKurch-run omes for the aged in California
njhich finances itself primarily hy itaking life contracts at the time
o person enters the home, preponderately, these are women.
Y] Recently the home or the chureh speaking for the home hag had to
o to court asking for the right to yenegotiate the contracts, the life
Eontracts becapise among other reaspns these women are living “too
“Ning”, loniger than they expected and they can’t afford to keep su

rti,n“gz- them. Now, that is just o microcosm of what I think s

tppeng— whhons,

Mrs. MexwER. Can a man live too fong, Dr. Sheppard ?

" Dr. Sgeeparp. Well, T am using the words “too long” jn quotes,

Mr. Brager. On that point there wds some testimony. I do not know
whether you were here, Dr. Sheppard or Dr. Gordon, hut therd wasa

marked reduction in deaths on the lpart of men, now the question
_ thi# came to my mind was is there a ¢orresponding increase in deaths
in the sgme cause among the womep?
Dr. Ri‘ﬁ_ﬂ’.\ﬂb. Well, I have the figures in here but——-

Mr. Bracor. My thinking is now that they are out in the work
. force in larger number and that they are subjected .and exposed to
.the, stresses and $trains of the men who are providing these women
with a life of comfort—. .

Dr. Sirepearn. I want to believe that thers is another positive di-
mension for the women’s ]iberation movément, namely, that some of
the work Sitess will be redhiced, bt I have not geen it yet &t least in
- my own private life. ' . L . .

* [See appendix 1, p. 68 for Dr. QhepBJ.M’s prepared statement.]
1

o

Mr. Bracor. Thank you very much, Dr. Sheppard.
‘ “ . .
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Owr nqxt\,\i\‘itno,‘ss. Mr. Pattick Murphy is currently presidefit of
the Poliee ggun(lation in Waslington, D.C. Patrick Murphy sas a
~ career poligéman. In 1945 he entered the New York City Police De-
“~partment 23 a patrol officer, that was 3 years after'I enteved it. He
was more“snceessful, TTe became the police commissioner at that {ime.
*IJe introdueed -innovation when innovation “was an operation other
, than the norm, and he distinguiéhed himself internationally<as the
.result of his execntiye abilities. ) ¢
" Il has also served as the chief police excentive in New York City,
Detroit, Washington. and Syracuse. In 1968 he was appointed by
President Lyndon Johnson to be the first Administrator of the Law
" Enforcement Assistance Administration. I am delighted to see my old »
friend and colleague. | .E’ . t .
STATEMENT OF PATRICK MURPHY, PRESIDENT, POLICE.
) : FOW&TION, WASHIRGTON, D.C. . - =

¥ . 3 . . .
© Mt Moreny. Thank.you very much, Mr, Chairman. The job has

"+ gutten tongher since you apd I walked the streets.
Mr. Brwger: I understand. . N
Mr. Mrreny. Mr. Chairman. X amn honored by the .invitation to
appear before the distinguishied subcommittee looking into the topie,
“\ging in the World of Tomotrow.” . ) C o

Nipthing this Congress can do and nothing that we who work in
eriminal justice can do that is more impartant than assuring the, wel-
fave and partienlarly the safety of nlder Americans. The Nation’s.
older citizens have earned the right to be safe aud sceure on the sticets
and in their homes. . . .

" As one Who has had the priviléze of serving as Chief Police Ad-
ninistrator of four .\merican cities. I have witnessed those oceasions |
of tragedy when o{_ﬂor Americans were the victims of deception, ffayd,
hnrglary, and ‘violeat trime. Nothing ean be more wrenching for an,
older person than to be the vietim of crime or,to suffer the fear of
crime bronght on lpaan attack on his friend or neighbor. As presi-
dent of the Police Eoundation I have been able to observe how littie
research eXists on the problem of crime and the elderly. T

So toeday I am’pleased to have the opportunity tosdiscuss the prob:
Tem of crime and the elderly and to speeniate a]‘::o

-
-

ut what the future -
holdg both i 'ternis, of the severity of the problem and df the needs
of local, State. and Federal services to respond to that problem.™ _ «. —~

I commend the snbecommittee for its approach in these hearings, Al- .

though the {)redi_ction of the” future is difficult, it.is well worth the
( .

effort if by doing S0 we can lielp prevent unnecessary human suffering.

Yon have asked4hat I review projections of the population of older
Auericans in the early 21st century and foreeast their possible im- .
plications for crime and the need for police serviees. With the help ..
of the Police Foundation staff, I haye completed such a review anH' e
have found that many unanswered questions stand between ns and
‘any Teliable opinion on' what the future will bring. u ./

The demographers estimate that the number and percentdge of
citiZens 63 years of goe and older will slowly inerease -betwoen now
and the end of the century gﬁi;g from 10.5T]pcrcent of the popula- .

n

tton in 1975 to 12.2 percent i car 2000, The next quarter L‘B‘Iltl} - -

Yy by . * rn
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will sce a much larger increase reaching 17.9-percent of the popula-
tion in 2025, . , .
From these nuimbers one could forecast that the ambunt of crimeg
gainst the elderly would increase proportionately. Howeversthe prob-
- lem_is more complex than that..Crimes are disproportianatély com:- .
, mittéd by young persons between the ages of 13 and 24. To see the, .
whole picture, we would need to know how many young people there .-
will be in opulation, hut projections of younger populations ave
much harder to_make because birth rates for the decades ahead are’

unpredictable. ' . - .. . e
~ Thexs is reason tohelieve fhat the munber of young persons in the *
*general population will'decrease significantly between now and 1990 -

-though the number and prgportion of inner-city young people is
likels to fall much more slowly. The predictitns beyond the short- -
term are speculative. ¢ N L
Perhaps though, neither the number of older persons tior the ium-

ber & yonng persons would have a critical bef¥ing on the nature of
the future crime problems of the elderl .gl'hegidence we hdve abant
the problem that now exists suggests that: “~ = . . ‘
«_One: Crime is not a problem for all older persons. National ¥ie- - . *°
timization studies show that in genersl, older peoplé are less likely
than other persons to be the victims of erime. c‘l N .
. Two: The problem occurs in large cities, in pacticular parts of those
«ctties. often transition neighborhoods-where ];az”ge ntlm{))e'rs of older

. people live side by side with large numbers of you n{z eople, T:vggnllly,"‘ *
:aihngg‘of order, In -

there are few middle-a jersons to maintain 4

these neighborhoods the elderly are-victimized at very high rates.
] _Three: Older persons are disproportignately thé targets of par-
«  ticnlar exrimessuch as purse snatching afd fraud.

Four: Fear of crime orvhe persongl trauma of being a. victim are
rnp(nlztliilm,ql‘edserious for older persons than they al'ei‘fop the young ors
middle aged. . 2 . .

-+ T believe, therefore, that the crime+problem of older Americans is
much more likely to be influenced by the nature of onr cities in the . .
.. 21st century than by the proportion.of the population in one or an-
other age group. To understand the nature of the problem we would
- need answers to a large set of %’estit'ins: o . S,
H; our,cities grow ! Will the middle-agel and middle-ingome
‘e back into or will the curifent pppilation moveMegds into
rural areas éontinue? . i o S
How will the increasing costs of energy affect our cities? Will the..
demand for city housing increase? Will the poor and the glderly be
pushed inty or Jeft in suburban ghettos while more mobile and%'&lﬁent -
citizens retirn to the city ¢ . X : . e A
1f there Sre to be broad papulation.movement, will they follqw the
same processes of }iast. decades, in which the elderly seem dispnopor-
tionately to be caughtin chaﬁ%ﬂfg neighborhoods? " . - a4 v
, ‘Will the proportion of older persons living in. hge-homogeriéous
and safer communities continne to increase or level off as the nuipber
} . ofelderly persons increasest Rt :
Will ofdpett persons develop more mechanisms ﬁr,ipﬁuencjng'tlﬁ
abiding values of the yourig or. will there develop increasing friction .
* between young and old for.available public résourges? ‘::\'—' N

1
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As these questions stiggest the 16 jos of erilnes conunitted -
aﬁnlns_trthe elderly in the fature may well” depend pyimarily upon
changing economic and social ferces rather than upon ghanges in the .
resources and tacties of the police ard pther ageneies i& the eriminal .
Justjce procegs. oY

Forecasting future resources needs of the police must,await a bet-
ter vision of the future. A usefulfirst step, though, would be to under-
stand better what polica can accomplish with the resources already at
their disposal. Although there has been-little systematic research on
the effectiveness of police responses to thetproblem of erfine against
the,elderly, there are & number of approaches which offer promise and
which*wmTant examintion by means of stroctured experimentati

. Stated in the form of hypotheses for researclh, they are?

That neighborhood team policing or an American versionef Eng-
land’s home-heat officer pro%‘:m bringg police officers inte€loser con-
tact with older members of the population, rednces their fear of erime,
and.more effectively identifies persons who vietimize them.

. That better eduecated and more professional pglico officers #an be
trained to respond to older crime victims in avays which reduee their
. tranmaand fear, . _ R .
That commmities and buildings can be designed tg better safegnard
theirolder vesigdents, * L .o S
o .. That better publie education ont the dangers of buneo artists and -
"7 "con men camr redice the vulnerability of older citizens to white collar
o Tob griminals, oo TR T T h lice & can devel
% That. tommunity groupPs and the police department can develop
i p;’c‘i;hﬁ to protect oldcgg citizens against retaliation by young offenders
=y 7 henthey call for help from the police.> - S .
"4, 7 That police efforts to assist older eitizens can be more éffective when
=" .. they are made part of the duties of the department as s whole rather -
: than the responsibility of a single unit. o o
There are vindoubtedly other propositions, Mr..Chairman I am sire
_yoi know'of.sdme, which alsd deserve to be tested. We'belicve however
thiat thege questions and propositions point out some of the move im-
portan}asgumptions linking social and economie phenomena to the

P

7" gpecial trime problem of the elderly and, in tun, to the impsact that
e = QOlite strvices can make ypon that prolem. ' :
* know that I, and my colleaguel at the Police Foundatibn, will be
. most interested In the testimony of other witnesses during these hea’r-
* Ing, We need their useful perspectivé on the broader social 1ssues which
we consider so important to the Problem of crimes aguinst the elderly. -
I have two recommendations to offer at this stage of.your inquiry.
%‘h@ first is to continue to support this sorf of research. The work of
_ thé select commuttee hras helped to focus attention on the lack of knowl-
édgeini this field. Tencourage you to push forward. -~ - = |
" One thing is eertain, wé must have better data on {ietimization of «
| “our éitizeéns,including the e'l@erlﬂ.\‘ Coe T U o
" . My wecond recommendation therefore is that the Lawy Enforcergent
Assist@nmrgglistrpﬁqn be asked to reconsider its recpnt decision to
snspend the Victiization surveys which produce. this infoimation. I
" “served as n member of the panel of the National Acadenly of Sciences
.~ which reviewed ];Eé.{l’s vietimization surve¥ program. We recom-
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mended im provemenuts ip survey techuiques. but we sfrongly supported
continned- funding for this important work, -
Mr. Chairinan, this concludés my prepared remarks. I will be hippy
to atteiapt to answer any questions yoi, or other menibers of the sub--
copnmittee may have, - _ .
Mr. Bragar. Thank you. Mr. Commissioner. ! . .
- 'This is a very thoughtful stateinent and it po¥es 1ery different ques-
- tions. Yonr statement has.obvinted some of the need for questions that
1 have prepared for you, but one question that has alivays bothered e
in relation to the elderly. eriine against the elderly you-made reference
{o the ‘ghettos in the cities where they seem to i)c occurring mostly,
What we arc saying in other words is where we have poverty and
*. - where we have young there are crimes against the elderly. Well, I'8o
not want to sound medieval but I was young a long time ago and I
, lived in the ghetto. There were o lot of young pcopfé, they were mis-
*" chievous and yes, many of them comniitted erime. The one thing they
didn’t,do was commit erime against the elderly. I have bgen searching
. for the answer: Why this time? Why,this generation ¢ ' :
Mr. Moreny. Mr. Chairman, I wish I could provide you with a bet-
ter answer concerning this inerease in violent crime that we see agross ..
the Nation; in a relatively short period of time the murder almost
.- . doubling nationally and such a high pereentage of this violent crime
l:;.e_lvreg committed by young people, o . T
o know that more of it is by young people against other young
edple, but I share your concern and ixfﬁ:i‘fiety to understand why this
htening incrense of attacks .and even homivides against-older
people by very young people. I wish I had some explanation. I think
my statement has suggested, at least suggested that theke is an enor-
mous need for improvingeonr whole law enforcement and efiminal jus-
tice system, because to be blunt abont it we are not very effective in
identifying these offenders and dealing with them at an early stage.
You are well aware of the recent change in New York State con-
*  cerning juvenile records, the reeords of jnvenile'offenders. I think that
is‘long overdu®. e e -
‘We have had the unfortunate situntion of Judges facing adolescent
and adnlt eriminals and heing unable to refer to & juvenile récord in
roposing. sentence. But we have inueh rooin for improvement on the
. ‘gohce side. the law enforeement side as well as in the erifninal justice
'side where werall know the overcrowding is 5o bad, the.dverload of
enses, that many of the offaiders, repeat.offenders. even violent repeat
offenders, some of them of tender age are falling thropgh the cracks of
the system are back out on the street again committing violent erithes.
So 4here is room to improve the system but T éannot explain. T am
as frustrated, I-believe..as yon are'in -trying te explain wliv voung
people attack elderly in tl?e ihereasing numbevs, I think "that -is
Tocenrring.’ . . o - 3
Mrs. Meyxer. Mr. Chairma¥, would you yield fora moment?’
Mr. Buaar. Certainly. . ° c 3 . :
Mrs. MeYyER, Would nof, some of the answer be, Commissioner
Mutphy, that there is very high unemployment among.ofir young
pepq}e, {)artleu]arly in urban areas? Th?'get desperate, they-don’t have
a: job, they liave nothing to do aiid older people are easier targets—
theyarenot gafing to fight back;they can’t run. - s

+
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Wouldr’t part of the solption to the problem be to somehow find
jobs even in’ Sne ublic or Private arca for a lot of these young people?
Mr. Moreay. [ certainly believe that. ... T
In all of my experience where e sce the worst of our social and
economic problems concentrated’in the eity, there you would see oury
worst erime and dur worst violent erimes. As a matter of fact, in this
city, in New York, in Detroit the census tracks of the mner city have {-
50 and 100 times the rate’${ violent erime that some of the census track
on the outer rim of the city have, .
T do not elaim to be-able to malke that connection between these
soclal and economic ilis, uncmpl'éiyment, drug addictien, alcoholism,
broken homes, all of those things that scem to be found together. I do
not know why there is a connection, but certainly there is some rela-
- tionship we see over and over again in every city that T am familiar
- with, ' . teom
Mr. Hucres. Would the chairman yield 230, just'on that point ¢ )
Mr. Bragor. Mr. Hughes. Mr.Hughes is from New Jersey also. RTINS
Mr. Huonss. I have not seen the dethographics that would bear i87 - %\
ont, but it hag been my owp-experience that older people seem to have,
in increasing number, bécom® prisoners in deteriorating areas because
they donot have the resourcesto leave. . .t -
They quite often, become cauzht up in their own commitment to a
given area. They are also hesitant to Jeave a home, perhaps of somé 40
years even though the neighborheod has clanged considerably.
. Doyouaisofind that tobe thecase? oy : - ..
- = Mr.Mureuy. I think so arid I think some o} the stndies reported in M
-~ your earlier publications indicate that older peoplé have more fear | -
: ganerally speaking and I think it is compounded by the crime experi-
- ence inthe néighborhood. ) . g
. Also, T believe it is very much influenced by the communication that
» s coming to them whether that be.through the news mellia or offier- -
wise: In other words, again in a publication one gf the comnittee re-
. ports vefers to the problem of feat which may begin to run away, that
as become greater than the r¢al problem would seek to warrdnt. Not = .
that T suggest for 1 minute that we sliould be lackddiasical'abont any =~
level of crime, hnt fear i% a problem. B T T T
What I am trying to.say is that the news media has sonié irifluence
top and the whole attitude about a neighborhood ‘Wlmbthclj it is detegior- -
ating, whether it is on.the skids. There is a- rexY pfoblem of mprafe of
people i the neighborhood. Of conrse many older people. as their
ndighborhods deteriorate choose hot ta leave the nelgﬁ orhood and -
"“'they become the vietims. ~ ° . .. .- L.
. M. Huagm.Even' though we have hecome a falrly mobile.fyansient -
society I think that older people attach more significance to the word
“home than someof the-other gronps. R ‘-
* Mr.Murpi?. Yes. Lthipk that 1s understandable. .
T am middle. myself, but I ndkice my own chenging attitudes-
- about those things and-I think that {)eo le just do not like:t6 leave
the neighborhooiiyhem they have always gorie to the same grocery
store or church or synagogi€, where they Jnow the neighbors.. , - .
Mr. Hogneg. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, =~ " . ¢ ;.
Mz Bratinr. Well. I'wonld like to get back 1o the gentlelddy from
New Jersey, her point about positive une)'n]%loyment. L ot

<
k] H - LN -

L .- .o ]
39

I3




I wonld like to say that X think poverty is relevant, part of-the,
" poverty today could ko almost described as aftluent as eompared to -
‘the poverty of decades ago. There was not any Government qqrticipa-

* tion. People in fact went hungry, I mean literally hungry with no hope
nnd no resource avaslable. Inm aware that there was violent erime and .
there was crime, but the diffepence is chat the elderly were not vietims
of erime tothe degret which we have today. Today they are the prime
tal;iets of criminals. That’s why I search, I am aware of the proverbial
- préblens of today, but by mgﬁing a comparisoh I am nnable to find
the answer to the question that I pose in connection and you npparently

have the same difficulty in finding the reason for this phenomnenon.

Mr. Moreny. Well, let me say in response to that cominent or ques-
tion that in, all fairness I think—with all of the weakilesses in our
reporting systems, we know more abouf erime today. It is being re-
ported more thoronghly and mote accurately. ol

As concerns the level of viotence in our eities, I don’t think. inasmuch
gs e are inclilnet‘kto believe these are the most violent fines, they really
are not the mostlviolent times in_our eitics. My forcbearers. my name
will tell you what my backgronnd is,gny forebeavers in New York City
were very violent people. e . .

In fact, the history will iecord that there were parts of tliec Trish
ghettos of New York in the 19¢th century where the police refused to
wear their uniforms, That’s how bad the level of violence swas. but
within less than 100 years of that that group had elected a president
3!}(1 of them have gone to the suburbs to another congressional

- distriet, e -t

So tgda,v they srrcfum at me, including my two brothers who are re-
tired membarsef the department, Congressman, about why more erime
in New York and coming intc®ll of the neighborhoods of the city. So
I share your concern that tbe level of violence we are experiencing
today directed against eiderly people i frightening.it is a frightening
phenomenon and we must address to social and economic eanses. cer-
tainly, but my more immediate concern, I have a bias, naturally being
in the ficld, is that we learn how<o dealwith thatyiolent offender at
the carliest possible momeyt and thaf the longest term inearceration

.is the only solution we see to it, that is what we must have as tHe short

¢ range solutién to this problems. "o ® - .

Mr3Braoor. Mr. Sarasin. - R = .

Mr. Sapasty. Mr.-Chairman, I-wonder how much of r.h‘(i;rbbleiq of.
victimization of the clderly is related to the lack of 4 loving ahd todeh-.
it;ﬁ relationship between the young people. and the older pep[}]e, moos
today’s saciety, existed in prior Socicties, just a few years ago. : ’
. Now we either farm qut our elderly or ledve fhem where they are
and the patents and grandcehildren go off to the snburhs somewhere
and you'do not have the atiitude thal a-youdg Rleé's n would have ifs
well, I-don’t: want ;ﬁn;i‘bi]ody tonching mimgraﬁ, ?her, and I'm not

. poing t&touch theirs. There are no grandmothet-grandchild relation-

", shipor af least fot very many. Maybe that has t do with the problem,
\ Mr. Murpmy. I suspect and I am noexpert, but I certainly sispect *
somte of the.problems-of the automobile and otr affluence arg just this
. thing! the generation gap and the separation. : -

. Todsy I understand there are many, many more people in nursing

hopmes or not living with the family, pathetically, let me say from my

oyn, at legst pxpericnh-gr'}‘know the Congressman’s experience &
' - . ‘,g - B - - .
o T
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where, you will go into'a home'in the ¢ity where your elderly parents
. of affluent childrén, afjuent ¢hildren who are not properly supporting
them. It is another tragedy and I think a mani festationgef the problém’ -
. vou describe, Congressman, that sonmichow we hecome a society where
+ we tend to separats ‘onfselves by age and the famnily strucuire that ™
provided protectionyin the past is hroken down. -
“Mr. Sarasiy. 'léh‘qr}l; you, Mr. Chainnag.
Mr. Bugor. Offe'more question. ' o
. Is it fair to say, given the circamstaiice of today aml absent any
. {froductiye research..that the elderly of the Nation in increasing num-
s .Lers of the elderly of onr Nation would be doomed to tire same type of
- existence or the sanre fype’sf fear they have with relation to their
* , 'personal safety? : - . .
Mr, Moneny. I think as another dimension of the whole urban crisis

- now is just not good. I am disconuraged by tRe-eutlook.

I see'it only worsening, I'm sorry to say that. I wish I could be more
entouraging, but I do not ste much room to be encouraging. .

Mr. -Biseer, Your background hag been a lifetime in every dimen-
sion, it is suggested in" research .beside what the National Police” *
Foundation is doing and this committee is doing, what other areas of
other agencjes or organizations are doing in working in #his aren ?

M. Moreny. T referred earlier to the problem in our courtg.”

- I think the breakdown in our law enforcement-criminal justice sys- «
tem for several years now has been in the courts, I am not shedting a°
seatter. shot at the judged I am not. saying there are ‘bleg@¥ 1}_‘aﬁlart'

¥ judges, or corrugt. judges and that’s the wblrole_ ‘_:ollﬁem, although I’
hato experienééd both typds. But I think the problémsis an inability
becguse of the overload to déal with Eheir work in the prosecutor
offices and the courts. -

The police constantly. c;gm}ilain, aﬁd on',thr bther hand the prosecu- »

tor—about aJl.of the arrests that ¢ e that the courts do not
iandle properly. The judges and p tors will sometimes say well
many of the arrests that the police make are not high quslity arrests,
. % .They do not have sufficient gvidence for rosecuf.ion,But the basix dif-
ficulty is that many of thes¢“young violent repeat’offenders are slip--
ping.through our hands because we aré not ‘working closely enough
together. The police departments and the proseeutors offices and I am
very encouraged by this new computerized system in the prosecutors
office hererin Washington, the so-calléd promised system which is help-
ing both the prosecntors and the police to do a better job of identify-
_ ing the repeat affender and dealing with him gromptly. I think-there
isvoom for a lot moge research around that whole process.
Mi. Bracer A ease at point. L ,
You may be familidr with. the Timmons brothers in the Bronx. I
think between them they commiited severa] hundred criniés, homicides
" . and all the way,down; and they never really-did any prison time.
_ Eventually they got involved with rape ad assaulted fobbery of dn
80-year old woman in the patk. The community beeame aroused and
the senior eitizens became aroused. What they did, in fact, is every
time 2 Timmons boy would perform this 2ct and was scheduled to ap-
pear ,befgzs the court they appeared in great number and they mede

s . ﬂlein‘i)rc.%nce known simpln ﬁ’ walking in, We are talking about thase

80, 70,50 80 years.of age walking in witheanesand whieheve_/'.
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There was a trial and there was a severe sentence and he lias been

taking out of eireulation which shows that judges behave just like any-
body else and thig respond to attention, to presdures, whichever. It is
society’s pressure y more than the level of sucjr. But yon are right;,
the eriminalejustice S¥stem simply s not workifig to support poten-
tidl-I could not agree with you more. : -,

Mrs. Mry~ER: % have-fio further’ questions except to thank Mr.’
.Murphy for giyinzusa great deal of food for thought. :

Mr. Bragcr. Mr. Hughes? _

Mr. Hoones. I have no further questions.” _

Mr. Sarasiy. No further questions, thank yon.

Mr. Bracer, Commissfoner, I want .to thank youw' for your
contribution. - - ' -~ . .

_ " Mz, Mereny..Thank yon, - :
~ " Mr. Bitect. Onr next witness is Mr. Ricliard Seammoit who is pres-
« _+ “ently director, Election Research Center here in Washingtén. He has
» " s served 85 a political analyst for both ABC and NBC Television Net-
¥ works. He i currently on the:board ofhe Ameriean Arbitron Asso-
ciation and his books inelude : “A'meriea at the Polls,” “This U.S.A.,”
. “The ]gal‘Maiority.” and:“The AmericanVoter,” .

- Mr..Seammon, welcome. | . - : 5

STATEMENT OF_RIGHARD SCAMMON, DIRECTOR, ELECTIONS  ,
7** RESEARCH CENTER, WASHINGTON, DC. 5

Mv, Scaarmox. Thank you, Mr.Chairman, - ' R

- -+

-

I lipve no prepared statement and I inderstand the sdb;:oﬁmitf '
fotned o N

is‘concernéd with general profile of the future for the Ameriean a
T feel-primanly, eleetions and olitical research and I will just outline, .
if I raay in a rmrute or-two, what I.think this iz likely to be and then
. re:Sﬁbn Jdf T maly, to such guestions as this may generate, - -
.. Blderly people are an inereasing share, ofy the Ameriean cleeted.
— %"gﬁnyoﬁ”@"of'yd& three were to alienate totally the aged population .
in your distriet yon wonld not come back. S e, T
- Mr. Bragér. Don't say it! Don'tsayit! , - o
%  Mr, Scaxdrox. You would not even’ get through the primary, I
would-bat, o . - - -
In 1976 voters over 50 accounted foi*40 percent of the votesapd I .
guy over 50 rather than over 63 because at the age of 50 they should
%gi forthink more about what is¥going to happen than what has ;

PR

s

¢d to them itt the past, -, » ° : , - F
stiouldl think that hike any minority thoigh this is a very large .
one the effifacy of the-aged voter depends bagically on three things:
. It depends first on pure numbers becange if a minority is smell
enongh it can still havé some ikfluencd, but obviously if stilLdiminighes..
_as the nhmbers diminish. T - T
" Second, it depends npon constangy and by eonstaﬁx I mean as =
" ivith any minority the degree tho_@ﬁpeophém ority are pre- i
pared to minkethat mirorify the sole reason for their voting behavior,
<" Yo\ all know from. y&fr owneRperience the prablem yov
with the conistaney of people muéh concerned about abortion and-ebont
" gun eontrol and- without looking at your own mail sacks I am sure
you get very strong fels on Both sides of these two questions.

4.
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Now, because ageds over 30 from 40 pereent of the }wtive vofin
ublic there are also many other things, they are rich and poor an
armérs and city dwellers and Jews and Protestants and Cathofies

ang all the rest. There arc many things which tug at their interests
an;l‘ cause then to vote the sray they do. .

n the last election, for example, for President the older voters split
abou:. evenly between Mr. Ford and Mr. Carter as did the whole'.
country. . B ' ‘ .

" The'constancy increases with the preceived danger to the interest .
of the group which is true of course of the aged, it is true of Italian-
ymeliecans, it is true.of anybody. If somebody were to propose a con-
stitutional amendment that no person over 60 would be able to vote
this would get, I think, 100 percent constancy response.

On the Sther hand there are many other issues which are highly

technical, very detailed and which attract the attention of relatively
" few people. One T may mention, Mr. Chaipntan, because it was raised
about the willinghess of young_people to continue to support the in-
creased social secukpty taxes, a level of social sécurity payments ¢o the
., aged. When I lecture &t organizations like the American Association of
Retired Persons Ivery frequeritly gof the reverse question : why should
we pay school taxes, we people pastL:‘iO. QOur kids are grown, they are
gone. Why do I have to pay for my neighbor’s four kids, which I think
13 & nice tradeoff of social responsibility in terms of who'is going to pay
taxes for what. - G o ., =
_ The last of these three things that affeet elderly voting is,.of course,
" -, organization. As many of you have perhaps seen in recent months,’
. Years in the ‘Congress, as the party ties have weakened nationally, as
. _ the Houses becomes a more democratized smaller body, the weight
® of pressure and the weight of organization becomes more and more

. im{:o'rtant. . . '

. he AARP now, I believe, has passed its 10 million ‘member mark
and are quite active as really, the Jast week's work in this House, are,
.+, quite active politicaily. S L :
. For the future I would guess the same plus, the weight of the elderly‘(l
voter is going to increase in the United States. I suEpcise that in politi=,

+ - cal reporting there was never as phony a story as the 1972 story about.
young America taking over the politieal process. The revolution was
going 40 leave on track nine at high noon—thére was no track nine,

. there was Do bigh noon there was no revolution and there were ye

. few Young voters.. - . - e L y :
. IWhat has happened is.that the-electorate is graying, not younging;
the percentage of people in the higher age group, who vote 1s already
measurably higher than it is to those under 30 and I would think for
menobers and eandidates the demographics of realism will b tested very
severely in this matter of the aging by being modified by these factors
of numbers and constancy and organizations. The numbers will cer-
. tainly be there. The vongtaney will be there 28 there may be threats .
against economic well-being, physical well-being of the aged andthe- - - - -
. or%anization ustally wishes to bring one and two together. -~ - | -
would think that in the year 2000, I would hawve to comsult with my |
former colleagues in the Censng Bureau, but certainly I would think
that the percentage of voters in thq eleetion yearof 2000 qver 50 would
be measurably higher than the ¢ percent which it was last fall.
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et me ¢onclude théve, Mr?Chairman, and invite
his may generate in your minds about vour futupel
. Mr. Bracor. Qur futures ‘ere asuved becapse we have the senior
citizens. o o . @
You make a very concise presentation and I firmly believe a very
aceurate one,
I think your analysis of where they go with xela:
the critical one.
Mr. Scaymuox, As with any minerity,
Mr. Brager, That's right. ) - .
. How do yon think Secretaty Krepy' renark with relation to increas-
ing the age to 68 would inpact on the semor citizen population?
_. Mr. Scamaox, Well, if she ran for Congress she wonld lose, but, she
1sn't running for Congress and being in the bureaucracy she canp—-
Mr, Biagor It would be that*kind ef issue that could have them
coalesce into a single group?, - _ \ :
Mr. Sc‘m.\mx.%’es,.l wénld think so becanse I know of no social
security recipient or potential'social security pécipient, which méans -
. me, who feels that social security is a welfayesgheme, » -
JThey may be acturarily wreng bnt I wohld say 99/and 44/100%
. percent of the poteritial recipients of socigl cunity feel that they have
made an investment in a system whe ey were/promised certain
returns for their payments. They do ot regard-it is a medn3 test,
hendout, welfare snbstitute. They vegard it”as something they are
-entitled to even if they are earmiihg money on the side as I believe
another part of this House has now rpised the earning cejling to
$6.000, if T read the press correetly at Mast in its present proposals.
They think rt{),f this as a right, not szli?ethi ‘
sit in some dirty old office and apply f singp
-ing. They do-hot think of it as a welfare systeng
§Ir. Brscar. Well, I.think they haye work
(O ) ' :

Mr. Scaaryon. That's right. T think if Secretary Kreps werestd't:
to pin this albatross on the sdministration, the administration woul
" suffer. . R L
Mr. Bracer. Well, T have got ¢hat side of thé -coin dealt wath, how’
about the other side of the eoin, ¥ou listened to all th:;gpzz; testify
. thiz morning and-say that somd adjustment must be e in light-o
the eversineréasing life expectancy, . - . ’ L
Mr. Scgadymox. Beeause of the finaneial problem? e
. Mr. Bragar Sure. . . v . :
" . Mr. Scaspvox, Take the school tax off the agetd. ST
In other words,.if you are.going to do one, do the other. I, forex- -
. .ample, hope to ggt my social security in & few years from now. Y could
equally argue, my daughter;"my one child: hes finjshed school. Why
should I pay 2 dime for the public schools as an act of selfishness.
#% Mr. Braaor, Noj ’'m'not-~— . R L e
M SGamyox, Limpw your point but what I, am saying is'that .
. the tpansfer here is so real that if yon want to take away by extendéng
« 3 years or by telling me that there is an economie diffieulty invélved ~/
here, let’s go the other way. e o7 ’
..~ Mr. Brager Let’s get it straight. - v
+ Idon't want to toke it away——, -
© =7 My, Scadpioes, No, Funderstand,, -

+
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. <" Mr. Brabor [continning]. The suggestions are made. ,
* Mr. Sgamuox. Let me put it this way that oncg you begin to equate
benefits avith specific pa¥ments then I might raise another oint—I
am not;going to,get as mnch ont of social so&rity as I putinto it. I
thigk ,tiﬁs is a fair statement, f think ever¥bbdy in the middle-class
is fopinally going to draw less than somebody who has not carned as
mucit during their career yet I ought to get full srtuarials of the
payfoents, : /: ’ -
nee vou go into this mare’s nest, I am speaking now in terms of
- ¢hé people who are actually recipients of the money, I think {on wonld
d up with more difficylty as indeed this House hag probably fouud
m trying to 1-&6‘1-1».;]?* welfare legislation and has foiind and will
ind in trying to reforn the tax legislation. There are just & tremen-
i /dous number of problerfis, . :
4 Mr Biacer, You will concede itisa problem?. . o
!/ . Mr. Scaansox. Anything involving money is a problém or its
1~ absence, particularly. ' '
# * Mr. Biager. Mr. Sarasin? . ' o e
Mz, Sarasix, Do you see, as hag been mentioned before that if social
oy - security would take an activist vole in trying to ei{)lain their role wha
by + they really do and how the systein really works that that might h?’{‘
4, + some effect on the standing of the people axe recipients or are about to
¥ bgcome recipients? - . - /
) *#" Mr, Scaxaroy. I am not really sure, Gongressinan. that protést Jiere.
which is to be relieved by this action is sg much among the recipfients
and the nedy negipients as it. is among yonnger people who saylf why
should my Sodl®ecurity tax go up, up, up and the ceiling on wliich I
pay go ‘IP~!1F= upfosupport,,t_he elderly. - o
There.I-think yoy ceuld Point ont that if your four kids wint an

education and want my money to help ecueate them, do it th{l other

B

; ' fwould not think that E:un real‘.problem of an education if not so
.~ much for those who are abont to,receive the money, they wargt to re-"
- ceive the money. I do not think they are cogréimedswith the| educas
. tional "circumstances. But you do certainly pave'a problem) ag'i
* + chairman pointed oyt to another witness, with 6 thos
are in their twwenties and thirties, forties who are going to by
increasing, socia) security taXes on ever increasing income ce}
+,  support this program. , , A\
.+ Now, whether or not social security, PR in cosmetiés would {lo any
. good there, Lo not kriow, . L e
Mr..SarasiN. One of the great’ comments, which ¥ am sure made to
211 of us especially by’ younger person is that they are never gai
see all the dollars they put in and if they took that money and
S into an annuity they would be better off, but 4f course. they ovs
. . . the fact that there is also a.disability coverage and a number ofjother
semeire e - bEDEAILS, Widows and oiphaps.and so forth that are in there thit can

!

%
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, - really provide an estate, . . -
S5 Mr,Scaxyrox, T hate to go back to the school system, but-we hever
,get the money back that we put in on most pnblic programs, cditai
'.indn’i&uaﬁ. - o ’ - -
- It would have heen mnch cheaper fol* me to educate mv one child .
Et;vately‘ and_take back every dime-I have paid ‘to Montgomery -
unty, Md., for school tax. I don' think I ought to do that. I thinic_/ _ _
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the edireation of children is more importaNn whethe":‘- or not I pay
extra money for this purpose. 1 would say thie Same argnment with
respect to theplderly. o L '

Mr. Sarasty. I had a college professor that opee said th{mk God we
don’t get all the government we pay for. . '] . . .

Mr. Scaxeyox. I think that-wounld be right, . =, y

Mr., Sarasi~, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. ~ .

Mr. Bracor, Mrs, Meyner? .o

Mrs. Mey~er. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Scammon I think we all have to be careful beeainse someone told
me recently that there are three ages of man. There’s youth, middle

age. #hd “12§, you look great.”

-

Mr. ScadpproN. There is & comment by an aging candidate for the
House of Commons who referring to his younger opponent said: “I
Wou]ld rather be in my second childhood than my first” and this might
apply too. . ’ . .

Mrs. Mevyer. T would just 1ike to propose to you a ratheri broad, \
philosophieal question. ‘ . .

As we all know older people for a Jong time got short shriftlin our
society. People begar to realize #5 you pointed out very realistjcally.
that senior power was growing. There were more seniors voting and
noliticians became very aware of it. We certainly are not holding these
hearings and there is not a Select Committee on the Agipg for political
purposes, A areat many of -ug care very miich about our senior citizens XY
and realize that more shodld he done for them.. : w b

But, as you know, any .group in soeiety that thinks it is getfing
someplace is gping fo want more and more and more for.itself.|We,
know that. Cooea i

Do you think there is any danger that the pendulum will swingand .
too mueh emphasis will be put on people over 65 or 70 :

I know that’s a tough question—— . T
Mrl.fSc;mmN. Well, a5 T gef c]gser to that age I try and disessocidte
myse ) oo . . - 1

Mrs. Meyxer. I mean, o lot of older people are wanting services.

.. affluent oldér peoplé that can afford these servides, but because they a

seninr citizens they feel they ought to get them free, - .

I disagree. I feel that ﬁgﬂior eitizens ought to pay school taxes, bu
where do you draw the Mne? T get a lot of mailpm my office sayin
why should I pay, ?ust as you iointed out, but I think they are a pa
of soclety and will ‘have to take both the good with the.bad, , .
Mz Scaypmonr. Let me put it this way as we all know and certainly
you who arc members know full well the pressures ipon you or the

-pregsures from any :group aré egnstant. . . .
.. Tpe-first .thing any pressure gioup learns. is the quick ability to |
identify the national interests with its own interests. I have found.
none who would come out and say well, I know this is only in my |
ﬁnteig;estrl, know it is against the national interest; but"Yam for it =
any¥way. ' - : . T A
_ The mind is m quick for this and it soon arrives to the for- |
mutla that what we ré proposing, whatever it may be to benefit me is |
- for* the natioral interest. © : ., - - , 1
- If vcf are speaking of the affluent 4 o, I would not think they
_ would "have any tg:u't\mular, claim on the Government; however, one |
" must recognizé that Yor older people at least to level that once is * .
, , .' - . TN
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" usually substantially to do so-to what they. had known during
“their: working years or inmost cases this is the case, and if
the programsscan be useful to them. fine. Those who need it, if they

can afford it let them pay fo_n;‘,li themselves, of %g(tilrso I would apply

this alLthe way down the.Jin¢ fd any prograin.’Medicare—medicard as

well as medicare, fogdcxample', £ you can pay for it, you should. But

this is just a persond] judgment, e _
On the pol it?cal side jlo which T was originally addressing myself the
" pressures, of conrse.'on you from almost every group known to man,
- will T s sure simply inerenge as people try to meet these terrible
- danwgrs, particularly influggh, they try to protect themselves agajnst
emergding themselyes agaifist emerging difficuliies with which they are
L faced whether it is erime in the street for the aging, whatever.
. CMas Mevrver. Well, it is w appeits to all of us here, every group
- - we meet-with leayes us with®two- messages. . .o
. .. - One, ceut down on Federal spending. but two, help us to get some
-Federal fundsfor our us¢ or our particular problems, _
' Mr. Scasestoxn. ‘Well; again in speaking of political questions round-
. about, when I talk and try to develop.is the concept of the ambivalent
Ameriean ho is always for programs that help him and not much
_, concerned with. the other. Our western friends who voted so heavily
for Mr. Ford in the last.election were very conservative and so it came
_ tothe job and the need for water then the Fe@eral Government was
. immediately importuned to ¢ause the heavens ¢o rain*upon them.
. Let me lay out this for you all, you haye.seen it o thousand times
af your own offices, . }

Mrs. Mevyer. Thank you..Thank you, Mr. Chairman. =
- Mr. Bracer. Mr. Hughes? : T
~Mr, Huoyes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, .

I féund vour testimony extremely enlightening. I think you have
tonched upon an aren that gives a Tot of us some concern and that is
the attitude that quite often is prevalent. What really is in it for me?

*When you talk in tenns of education, T suppose those that are child-
Tess would have the same argument as to \?;13! they shouldn’t be sup-

© porting edueation. Co .
. Mr. Scasnatoxn, Or many Roman Catliolics that are required to pay
_ a sehool tax and in addition required to pay a rapidly inereasing fee

to parochial schools.

.Mr. Hvaenes. I think there is a point, T am not saying we have
‘réached it, where perhaps we do ourselves a disservice for just think-
ing in terms of individual or just group reeds. I frankly think that

.1t 1s important that seniors continue to play a very important role and
that_includes contributing to community needs, There aie ways that
I think we can relieve some of the burdens of our aged and address
some of the problems, short of removing them entirely from some of
the programs that they should participate in as part of the natfonal

..., Btate, or community effort.. I hear the ssme.thing as you do.
7. Mr. Seoryox. Iam' sare you do. S B
Mr. Hoees. In faef, it is amezing to find that-in man ‘the
communitics you wil) find school bond issues going down wﬁe you
have heavy concentrations of senior citizens. It is also frightening to
see the low numbers of young people coming out, for school board elec-
tions. But the seniors partitipate and do often make g differente, T

" think that we have & great deal of good leadership nowin many of the
. 3 . s Lo . ~ \
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communities, and the seniors have often taken the much hroader view
that education 1s impertant andthat they do have a responsibility as
part of the community. Also, T think it is part and pareel of efforts to
bring older people inore into the maiggtream of the community, and to
ehiminate the Kind of iselationisin that has taken place in many area.”

Lthink it is important to iuglude seniors more in the decisionmaking
process, mote i the mainstremn of activity, whether you are talking
dbont taxes, or whether you are talking abont other programs.

Mr, Scaxarox. The point which I was making about the school taxes,
whialh Tafn perfectly happy'to pay and T am sure every senior eitizen
an Ameriea 18 willing to pay, providing it is not thrown back to him
constantly that the yonng people are bitching becausé they have to pay s
for the upkeep of the elderly. We all pay for things.for which we have
no immnediate and persoual gain. Thc{)eo?le behind you in the picture,
for _cxamf)lc are paid for by all of us. We have no immediate gain from
this. We hifve ) long-range gain, but I am distressed sometimes to heat
the argument dr to heai the viewgmnt that young people will refuse
to payesocial sequrity taxes or if they had the option would opt out of
the social security system, because they are the narrow point of the
pyramid, yon know, snpporting such a vastly increased number ‘of

. elderly people. and T must confess that as 2 quasi-demographer I
wonld doubt this, - + ° . =
_But with the rapid inereasing two-earner families-and the rapid _
nwvement of women in fhe labor force and the types of our integration |
policy on the other side, I would think that as far as the labor force
1s concerned the admission of illegals and women—maybe I had better
say women and illeggls was—would raise this base much higher than
many péople'fear it may become. .

Mr. Hggiies, Well. I think yon have triggered something else that.

I have scen some indication of and that is.the feeling on the part of a
lot of young people that they are earrying much of the load of secial
seeurity system. . Co -

I thmk it is so imporfant that we defusethut-attitude of conflict
hetweén young and oldér Wmericans about who is doing what and
who is carrying what responsibility. I do not think that that is a
heaithy attitude—— . »

- Mr. Scaatox, Itisnot. | s .
_ Mr, Hrengs. Fortunately, I think that such a feeling ig in the mi-
nopity. I think that mogt older people and most young folks know -
that there is a great deal of responsibility involved by. just being a
citizenin thiscountry. . - =~ T T .

Mr. Scastwos. T wonld hopéso, I would hope so.

Mr. Hovones. Thank you, o

Mr, Biagor. Thank youw, Mr. Seammron:

o o MreScaotoy Thankyou Mr, Chaypman.. . L LT
Mr. Bragor, Dr. Robert H. Binstock.: _ ° : .
Dr, Binstock is Stulberg professor of law and polities at Brandeis

T,’nirer;sity. He is presently on sabbatical at Harvard University as
visfting.professor at the'school of public health services administration,

& ' .

s

Dr. Binstoek has written and lectured egttensivcly in the field of, ‘
a,f_:ling. ¢ has also participated in symposia on aging in America’s
futiire, '

Dr. Binstock, we welcome you.
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STATEMENT OF DR. ROBERT H. BINSTOCK, VISITING PROFESSOR,
* PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATION, HARVARD UNI-
-VERSITY, BOSTON, MASS. ;

Dr. Binerock. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, My apelogies to' you and
the members of the committee for not having a written statement.
If you look closely, you may be able to see that the suit I have on this
morning isn't a suit. ft is one coat from one siit and pants from an-
other. That's how hastefully I mobilized myself to get here. -
At.any event, I will try to be brief. I have been asked to deal with
soctal implications of the aging of the population. Rather than. take
2 olobal view of all of the social problems, many of which we can
\wﬁl anticipate, I would like to focus in on 4 priority set of jssues,
In some ways getting to the political realm a bit, perhaps taki
a little issne with my illustrious predecessor here at the table. I do
not want to go over the ground about the aging of populations. I
think we have well established that this is a worldwide phenomenon
in industriglized countries. : ) . .
I wonld just like t6 call attention to the particularly important
point for social implications of the enormous increase in the number
of old, old people we are going to-huve, > Lo . . :
The reason I do that is because as Mr-Gordon’s testimony at the ~
outset indicated, we do have life-extending research possibilities com-
ing into fruition probably over the next 20 years, - ]

1e implication of that for the quahtlof life is not so good. The

reason I say that is because we do not hdve very good technology or
research underway to deal with sach.disabling conditions as organic— -
brain syndronie, chronic brain syndrome. As a consequence, we are
going ts'o'Y‘Bave more people around proportionally and in nmnﬁws-&ha
~ we do now who have chronic brain sfndrome. -
That is one of the reasons, one of the main reasons-we begin to talk™ 7 —
about the quality oféife very, very seriousty at a fundamentalTdbel. o /- _-
. Now, this and other concerns td+the quality of life have led Gs, the
Federal Government, our State and local ﬁovemmenfs and the sogiety _ — .
in general to elaborate an incredible agenda of cqminitments’to help- -
“-ingolder pergons. - . T = =
. Mr. Sarasin, you may recall that I testified before the full committee
back in early.tzugust and made the point that the House select cofn-
inittes has identified 135 Federal programs, affecting the elderly~and
that does not say anything for the 80,000 governments at the State and
local level and what they have committed themselves to, As he will »
recall, T made the poin, then that we cannot financially. let alone
logistieally and bureaucratically. even begin to. deal-effectively with

. .

.@.Us;*.tt‘liesgshj,ng'ﬁ,mjmte,ﬁaid;.wwantiodo.,ﬁ,_._'_: -
~ .50 there i¥ a question of priority. - t .
Now, what T-woitld like to focus in on in terms of the futuredg the
" . very critical area of the social implications of ill health beeause we are.-
going to have more people around with il! health as a consegnence not
.. only of the.demography. the birth and longevity isswes, but further.
. - thanges in Jife extension technology. I '
. Now, we know that. the socin] implieations of i1l health are ennrmous.

.. hoth for the individual and for-the _md‘y'@tlal's family and ¥ think . |
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both of those 'should be stressed. We Know that. farithd individnal-ill
health means a loss of self-esteem, . loss of socia] Status, 2 loss ofa
capacity for work no matter how many laws there are about your being” |
able to keep working. A loss in the level of income, a loss in the range
of social contacts and a loss in the quality of an overall life style; *

For the individual’s families there is 2 direct impact dn the families
and member's own physical health'&w\lmther it is a spouse or the adult, .

- -

children. The nature of family relgtionships the contdets within the
“family, its living arrangements, if§_economic status, hnd. its social
activities. o
Now, it is this picture of the im]cgllications of ill healtl; that has lead
us to stop making these academic distinctions between health services
and social services and begin to talk abont a continuun of supportive -
*  services. Where you draw the line between health and social suppdrt
is something people might want to debate on the head of a pin, but
there ig arrangement needed, ., . - I I
Now, the temptation to underestimate the natnte of the problem is
readily understandsable. There is what we call the 5-percent fallacy.
We read statisties ofl'the institutionalized elderly today that 5 percént
of the elderly are ins%?lut’mnalized because of dispbling conditions such
*  ag chronic brain syndrome, That is misleading, It js true at any given
moment, if you could stop the clock and have an.instant replay you
would have,ﬁﬁ%rcent of the elderly population. But if you phrage the
testion : What are the 6dds that you or X will be in an institution be-
+. fore we die, the answer comes out 1in 5. . T
In other words,at the present time 20 percent of ok colorts of
elderly persons are }oing to end up in an institation before they die. -
Now, let’s add to this to get a really larger percent of the picture * °
that it has been very reliably estimated by our leading expérts such as
Elaine Brody of the Philadelphia Geriatric Center, that in actual fact . ,
70 to 80 percent of the supported eare provided for older persens in
this-country including.institutions and outside institutions is provided”
‘by their own families, OK, that is even’ineluding in that institutional
picture, 70 to 80 percent of the supparted services ave provided, by
adult children. . . ’ : B
Now: if we think of that in terms of certain cuffent trends which
have been alluded to today the implieations are ¢normons. We have.
already talked about the increased Inbor force participation:of women.
“That means that those adult children mostly who are danghteys who
ara providing that eare are gbing to find it hafider and hardet to pro-
vide that care much as they may want to, just beeanse of the.ldgistics
of the situation. , . - <. -
More importantly the British historian Peter Laslid ks identified
that 1s it not the industrialization of a society.or-its-technology or all -.
. of these global pictures that lead to the *1'% 1p of family support and
- Kinship networks in supportnig thyaged. Wiiat it isis frendg in such _
‘things ‘as diverce, separation, rafés of remapijage or nonremarriage =~
and what those trends do.to weaken family tiess B so happeris.that we™*
are' zoing through: the exact trends jn this speiety fight now that he
_ has identified in all sorts of societies 0véx the last scyerak centuries
. thronghont the world that tend to wegken kinship ties and the eapacity
and the ahility of families to support their older persons.,* | e
Now, T briefly paint these things out Lecause it sb[‘i]%nme ifThadto °
pick a priority social implication and policy implieatipn of the aging

L

.-
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of the pepulation it would be that as we have thig inereasing number

_ of older persens when we count from 50 t¢"80 and people count Yrom

. * _various ages today, it is clear we are going to-have more people who are

disabled by things we cen not do much about and are unjikely to for
som®decadeg like chronic braip syndreme. -+ - o

As we reach into this period we are going to have less of a natural,
support system in society thah we have now because of the terms Lhave
just alluded to. People will want to help out their parents, everything

®  ndicates that that is true and indeed data show that people do not like

' to Have to rely on bureaueracy. They de not want te dump-their

arents or.their uncles or their aunts on bureaueracy, but they may not

) capable giving the kinds of household living arrangements and
work arrangements that we seem to be developing. :

So I would suggest that as this committee wraps,up thissetofhenr-
ings and moves toward thinking about the future, the area to concen-
trate might very well be policy not that, wwoild show 135 things we

., -might try to do, but policy that might help t6 keep thet family in tact
ang help it to do what it wants to do. It may be incentive to help the
families stay together. It may be boarding hospitals so the family can

ot away for a weekend and make it more manageablesto have.mother-
in-law liying with them and still make life bearable to all of them.

It may mean more day-care placés where peoplecan have -their
.parents 1 decent-shape while they are off at woik. And with due
_respect to the Chairman apd to Mr. Scammen, I yeuld like to cenclude

. " my mmarks at this point by suggesting that I do not think Congress
is going fo be pushed to.do this or any other thing by senior power.

%’would not stack up the case of my mother against yéur mother
except to say- T SRR

Mr. Biagor My mother isa serapper. - Gt

Dr. Binstock. My mothér is a scrapper alse, but she is fighting {or
day-care for children, whieh is 2 peint T jrant to make, not to the
agmng even though she 1575, | S -

The point is that if you go down Mr. Schmmon’s analysis and-his——
own point about numbers, constaney, and drganization there at the
present time the aging gre not ahead of a hompgenéous group all voting .
the same. As he pointed out in the last électidn it was ibout 50-30. -

‘We have no.indication that weare going tolhave a diminution of this
heterogeneity but the péopulation is going td get more diversed from
everything that My, Gordon has studied andeverything else we know.

Se unless we.get to the point of the illustation he suggested’ns a
eonstitutiondl-amendment or the point whemp we say we had better
round uP all these old people where we can serye them all conveniently

- irrone place I do not think you are going to getla ¢ohesive age vote.

- .Nobody is organizing that vete now except 4t the very loeal level in
+ yery specifie ‘distriets. I would not sgree that Juanita Xreps-twould :
.lose unless shie ran-into 'very speeific kind of |distriet that we wenld—=%""
= ~ .~ —describe;-people-wHo-are.very very eagerly Jooking forward and on the
+ ., brink of poverty to their social security cheeks. '

Thei reason I make these points and maybe wie will talk about them
some more is that T am concerned pbout two things in the distorting
_political pictiree of the aging, ' :

One is a backlgsh that I see emérging. The more I read in the press 4
about the politicl elout of the eldetly, imeluding this merning’s papér

_on the puttimg-down, the more I begin to see.the linguage stipping over
R ot = ; " ! * ' -, " -

" N *
T < ) . .
1 . .
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into and impl¥ing that these people are ripping ns off, I have seen those
words, th§ “Social Security Ripoff” by syndicated columnists, the
more people are implying that whatever older people have must he
what they want because they are so powerful they get anything they
. want ont of Washington. . - - . ‘

Mr. Biagar. I do not believe that15a fact, -, ' !

. D, Binsrock. Ny, it isn’t, .

Mr. Braces, Iso when they talk abﬁults rip-offs. T don’t believe
that those writers ave referring to the elderly who come on to their
benefits at the age of eligibility. There may be somre other conditions,
but T do not think that is the area to which they refer. .~ -

Dr. Brnstock. Well, some of them are not as eareful as you are.
Mr. Chairman. but the other point, aside from the backlash 1s that T
do not want the Members of Congress to feel {hat they are going to be -
pushed to do what needs to be done.

T appeal to yon to take the samne kind of leadership you have shown
at this mandatory retirement bill and do’it through concern, the kind
of concern yon have. -

Mr. Bracar. I think notwithstanding we may sav a lot of tliings in
good humor. but the real-motivating foree is the American sitnation.

Dr. Binsrocg. I agree, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Brager. I think most people recoonize that. We like to aliven
<ome of these hearings with injection of husor on oceasion, but I have
- oniv one comment T would like you to respondto. .

" (ven the break down in the family and the inereased age of par-
ents or the yong children or their chiidren in the sixties on the desire
to really keep the family together, given the fact that that is not hap-
pening the buptden has to shift somewhere. I can only see the ine 'tabllé;
the government as the'last resort. I do not know just how many dollars
would be available for senior citizens if it got to that point because
it is a very tonchy area, but to encottrage or eleviate some of the prob-
lem that a family might have, what is vour reaction to revision of the
income tax law which wonld provide for an additional deduction for
houschold for the senior 65 or older? ) . >

Dr. Bixsrock: T certainly think that is a very reasonable and meri-
tovious possiblity to explore. Certainly far better on its face than many

of the dednetions we have at this point and‘T think that 15 exactly the .

kind of jllnstration or the incentive to help the family to do what he.
wants to'do what we were talking abont. el

Mr. Bracor. Mr. Sarasin? -

Mr. Sarasiy. One of the statutory changes that has been made in a
Int of States has’heen to insulate the family from finaneial responsi- -
bility' for the parents. I do not know if.that will ever,change again.
but it certainly means the laTze numbers of people are.now receiving
welfare payments for nursing homes which I guess in the welfaye
area that is the largest expendituie of dollars, to maintain people in
nursing homes. 7 ) .

Prior to these changes that usé to he the responsibility of the family
and the nursing home was an area of sort of the last tesort, yon main-
tained that elderly persén in the family unit as longas you conld.

I wonder if yon would comment just on that phenomenon. Do you

[ 3 .

think it is good or bad or where-we shoutld zo'?

Dr. Brysmwcg. T think it js an extremely important jssne You raised
_Mr. Sarasin. - . . : .

»
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There js_considerdble work underwsgy now whichhas pot gotten to
the conclusive point and_may never, but it ‘'may get to the decision-
meking point; to try and analyze the corpparativg costs of providing
people the services and suppoyts they need to remain in the community

. whether with their families or some semi-independent of their family
and in institutions. : . . -

The truth is if you look to see what. is done in institutions, it is to
do exactly what you do when yon help maintain an older person in the

. community, in a _householl. Replly implicitly what we have 4s the
‘ Il:otiomthat there is some sori-cconomy of séale by doing it in nursing
..~ That may'be problematic and it may be that it is even more costly
.. given the abuses in gur system which we, mnay never be able to correct,
to do it on an i::rgtitutional basis. So thé maimn comment I would be
able to come up with is that I think we ought to keep a very careful
‘eye on work that is being done In this area to sec.1f in fact, there ave
lots of m; abolt institntions and If we can’t smoke out the notjon
‘that.maybe what we have beew using institutions for is to get rid of
« our own responsibilities and guilt and to not really to save money for,
society or for ourselves. *- . . . . .

. Mr. Samasy. If we are not 5_?1'11 o go backward and placg the fi-
nancis] responsibjlity back on the cill'd‘;en of the clderly, does it make
jSense to move in the other direction that actually provide a financial

incentivp. for the same childrén to keep ghe elderly person in the family
. ashas béen sugzeSted ,

Dr. Benstock, I #hink i .espgeially if we could do it without

tr%ing_ to' pnt a bureavergey of servict delivery in place first.

n other words, if we ¢80 s¢ in the payments and the incen-

. fives whether they are tax dediictifins or otherwise to the family. As
a service delivery system n much, much better one than we have now
gradpallﬂwgets phased in. We may have to sacrifice for a shorf time

Seme aw . )
would, want to phase to-this Yery carefully, but I fervently eve .
‘thdt we could move toward something like a free market supply-in-
(‘!emqnd sitimtion on that-if we provided the incentives to the family
to prirchase services within the community. .
__Mr. SarasiN, So then ‘the musing, homes would be ant trying to
compete.for those—— L - -

Dr: B_%sjqcn. They ma¥ try to compete, but I think we could

ard situations where there arg np services in place})esi{ we
leve

.~y design the eentives so that the.nursing homes might not be the ones
. that they would be allowed to.use for the incentives, for the deduc-
tions. or ratﬂayment\ money for—in other words, we could put an em-
phasis.in the design, the purchase of services that kept people in the
commfinity rathierthan dumping then in institutions. -
Mr, Sarastx. You stated earlier thdt the fature outlook wasn't really
. all. that good..I do not know exactly how“yon phrased it, but the
impression I was Jeft with was cer!:améy the quality of life wonld not
o bg___pa_;:;itpn]arl ‘#ood ejther for The clderly-or for the rest of society _
‘ : mF o deal with tl\g problems: of handling* the question of the
: elderly. ) S ' :

.. Dr. Brxsrock, If yon Iook at thie old oldseWes. 1 agree with thd

earlier msfim:rfv‘.\-‘ of sevdral witnesse,s;g:at we are in effect going to'be

extending middle\- &;e into chronologichlly later years, tha% is, people
.. willbe healthi‘e'riT eir sixties and in‘their seventies,
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Hox%e‘\'er, we are going to have more people in their eighties and it is
there that Tam particulaply addressing myself to the old old.

For thaf issue and for those people things are going to Be tough,
so I thipk_we swill Mave less problems in the social area and this kind
of funcfional area than we hav{ hagrthrqugh'the decades of the 1960's
and it inay be well into the seventies, but wé are going tohave justas
many problems and probably morg transferred now higler up the age
range with the Tife extensions, : RN ;

_ Mr. Sarasiy. Do you thipk that an effort to deal with those prob-
Téms, the retirement age, sosial security retirement age should be ex-
tended. raised ¢ . . <

Dr.Bixstock. If it can be done in a politically viable'way. Tifat is
the tough nut to erack. ,

Wo saw how Juanita Kreps was jumped on the second she even
mutteréd a word en it and I think it is going to have to be introduced

. very $lowly, carefully. Perhaps if the education, Dr. Sheppard talked,
‘about, perhaps it i just the eapacity to find what copI[r; are stating
the issue in slightly, different ways. I think it will haye to be a-very

. eareful, slow campaign before it hecgmes politieally viable. i

Mr. Sarasry. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, - e

Mr. Biacer. Mrs. Meyner? - o

Mrs, Mex<rr. Yes, Mr, Chairman, e

Dr. Binstock, as ot know sve have voted on the elimination of ma
datory retjremerit and all of ng who work qn that bill thought it wfs
2 good piece of legislation. I discovered %oing back to my distriet/in

'New Jersey on Saturday at a luneheon with the president of Prin )
some opposition by members of the administration of that umiversity;
somg faculty too. You would have thought I had just done away with
tenure, . ST
. Ijust wondered what you think. as a member of the academie world, ~ = -

. “frankly, of thatJegislation $ . e - ’

__ Dr, Bixstocr. Well, fortitnately I do not have fo speak for univer-
sities, but as & member—as a gerontplogist first, & political scientist
first and ns a university adrunistratdigecond, I wonld say it is a terrific

~ thing, but they aze scaredl out of their wits because of the question o
higher salaries, heople getting raises’through longevity and they al
ways get 7-percent increases, 5-percent inereases and of course ti

- hizher up ydu are the bonus goes for your salary, plus as you Lave
Leen reading the point about all of the affirnative action prograpfs for
women, minorities and so on, it is goi § to clog up the spots.

o

Now, I suspeet ‘what this will do ib rdise, sooner t.hlnn would have -

happened the question of doing awaywith tenure in ‘luniversities. I
1l

am all for tennre, I was not untilsL; gt it, byt I am'alllfor it again. '
. And we will not get into speecl®s‘on that. byt the truth is.that that ™
is what i3 going to have to give thete andyI am all far it fivinghecause . *
that is the prineipie embidied in mapudatory retirement. ’
Mre, Mevxer. Do you feel this Jegislation “will mea
tenured- - =t — oo s oo e e
DrBrxsrock. I think evgn tuali}itl}'vill. yes. ) ;
Mhrs. Mgyxer. That is g very Shteresting peint, Thank yon very | ¢
Aimuc . T . - . . :g - T [
ng. Bikstock. You aréwekome. L
Ir, Biacor. Mr. Hughes?—-

o .":/-" 5({
T
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*Mr. Biacor. Thank you,’ Doctor. .

Dr. Bixstgcr. Yousare welcorne. -
> Mr: Bia; Our last witness is Mr. Humphrey Taylor -

Mr. Taylor is chairman and cljief operating officer of Louis Harris
& Associates, Inc) He is also ‘chief executive of Lonis Harris Asso-
ciates. International of London, England, Louis Harris International

Lk, 2T

- has-conducted surveys in 44 countries aroung the world. I)umng his
survey field Mr. Taylor worked for the Governnient in Tanzania and

Paraguay He has published many articles in his survey research and
pubhcl[m icy and is broadcasted frequently on radio 4nd television.

aylor, welsome. Before you start I must make you aware of the
time in which tve Jive. We respond like Pablo’s dog to belis. The first
set has gone and we expect, the other set Wijl run in the next ¢ or §
minutes. We will go sometime beyond that, We ask your forglveness
by posmg a time lmutatuon but these a:rethe facté of hfe ’ o

: ,STKTEMENT oF HUMPEBBY T&YLOR, DEPUTY GHAIRMAN AND

- OPERATING OEFICER, TOUIS HARRIS & .&SSOGIATES
. INC, NEW YORE CITY . .

m.“mm?m irmen, Imustthan]rﬁm-ﬂﬁtoiall for) prpmpt— |

titg;me, T am actua ydeputgr chalrman not chairman;:
T would also like very briefly if I could to exXpress Lou ‘HatHig's

- personal apologies for not being hére, unfortunately he Was mvited
this vid g Wi

vrior to this visitation here By the Majority Leader Wri ﬁf’f to spéak
to the Democera t1gcsucus avhich is where he was this. mornmg iy

In view of thé tirde constramt»I won’t say all of-the thmgs I; was

‘intending
theMr. Brlémer. if ‘ydu l'g,ve a written st.atnmmt we, w1ll accept ‘that e y
Mr. TA‘Y]&')R. Ivill submit that later if I may, | I knew I'was comlng"

- only last night, so it is not exactly. readible,

think most. of you are aware of this study which we camed out
in;1974 and which we published in.1975, “The Myth and Reality of
Aging in America” comngissioned by the Nationa Councllﬂﬁw Aging

: ﬁnd funded by the Burgen Foundation. -

Very briefly, I think there were two very lmportant sets of ﬁndmgs
m \this study:

g ﬁpe of them ct;ncemed-——-

r.. Brasor-Mr. Taylor, Mr. Sarasin’ made thla sug%;a:mm that we
1-ccess ;iuther than adjourn in fau'ness to you and to tiie issue, 80 we '

do exactly.thaf., .
So wewill-Tetess, \ﬁf’ o :""
[ A recess was taken from 12;29 noen 12:30, 1]

Mrs. Mevyer [now presidingl. Mr. “Taylor, | apoler%lze for«t.hab

" briéf break which xyill help t6 not lower our viimg reco

- 1974 anfi it swas pubhshed in197 5.

I think it might be better, if you would nef mind, for you to start *

. trom the beginming because it would giye us(a chance to_catch up.

- Mr. Tayror. Eine, I.was just in fact5ta to mention this study
whu:h ig the stady called “The Myth and Reahty of ;:fgmol in Amer-
ica” .which we carried out for the Natlonn.l Counct'l the A.gm%m

.-
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It was anrextellgi?e and substantial-survey l?azed on interviews of.
over 4,000 people ineluding 2,700 people over the age of 65 and { am
*  told by many experts that this is still a very major sour'ce of data init=
¢ field. Dr. Sheppard’s conments.notwithstanding.
s the title snggests a considerable part 61 the stirvey was designed
Jo mneasure attitudes to.older people, to their abilities and’to their life
tyles and to compare thiese pereeptions with reality and with the
‘answers of oldér people themseives. - .
1 s the enormons discrepancy that existed between the pithlie
perjgiiion and the agtual experiences of old people which we identify
"us tMmyth” and it is a very damaging myth which I have little doubt
is still substautiaHy truetoday. - :
If therd is fime T was going to qpete. for about 2 or 3 minutes from
- Mr. Harns’ statement. . . co
Mres, MEYNER. Certainly if that is all 1ight with you, Mr. Sarasin?
Mr. Sarasiy, Surély.g \
Mrs, MEey~ER. There 1s-plenty.of time. Take all the time you like.
¢« Mr. Tavror. Fine. R
* When le presented the study to-the public in 1975 To1t ITarris made
a statement and perhapsthig is the key of the topic. Ife ran them |
through a series of the chardeteristics of how the clderly were pors
etved-ami-to fnselves replied and less people say that
 perhaps the reprise of the elderly should not be frusted we demon-

strated that i ¥€ply to those series of questions they did give us honest
and immany dases a"%‘ﬁi—wn about themsclves, so we be-
lieve these answers shdiild be taken at their face valge by afid large.

Sixteen percent of the total public thinks that semior eftizens o not have

«enoukh elothes to Fear wbile only'3 percent of seniow citizehg themselves say

- ¢ that fhig is a very serious Problem, - . . '

« A gubstantinl 28 percent of the publie feels thit the eldérly dre suffering from

not'biving engugh fritnds with only § percent of the &% and o

%, thint, this ¥s the ease and even 50 pereent of the public feels
"+« [n canstant fear of crime” The aetwal iumber i 23 percehit,

. _ but ngt nearly as highb ag iziestippated. - - ‘e

Agdin, 30 percent of the publie think older peome Xe in floor bealfh! Tbis
compjires with 21 percent Of the senlor citizens reporied that they are infirm,
again, bighb, hut not nearly ay bad.as the public think ) ' ’

A gubstantial 37 percent of the public th 0
{lo to keep busy. but onl¥ & percent of th §
for thelr own lives A 54 percentdf {he public thinks the elderly have &
sense of not being vecded, but only §F percént of the 63 and ovehage group

.. ‘ac¢tuplly teel tbat woy tbenyselves. . ) e . ook

A snbstantial 80 percent vf the fe thinks that ¢lderly people suffer from
lonelness and that this 13 a ve ous problem, byt no more tban 12 percent of
the 65 and over age groud feels the same about themselves. And on an even

. grosser libel thgt senior citizensfares inert, the sénlor- citizens themselves,say
.stich charges ave nonsense ne f¢r s they personall¥ are concerned, . -* ¢
Only 29 percent of the Publig'thinks that mature Citizens nre bright and alert
*and 68 percent of the matixf citizens phemselves feel tha't they_are. ‘Ounly, a
slightly higher 73 percent of/the peoplefundér 63 feel fhey are bright and alert -
.themsclves, hardly any difference in seif-perception, - .

Only 33 percent of the entire public thinks that senior cltizens are goog gt
getting things done, hut a mueh higher 55 pereent of tlie seniot .citizend feel
that,way compared with pnly a slightly higher 60 percent of the popuiation nnder
65 in that percedtion thenselres. I e

Only 21 percent of the public thipks that older people are open-mitided nnd

* miaptable but 4 mmeb higher 63 peycent of the aaturu} eitizens grond fecl they

r

_arg eompared to 67 Dercent anfongst those uuder 1 .
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Tiges all of this mean that_senfor citizens have it much easier and indeed do
Lot sgaffer from r ionsing, inadegutte incomes, fear of crivie, ot having
cooh nredical care, not enongh joh Incliities, not having enough money to live
oyg? No, indeed. objective standards much obviously negds to be done in all
these essential bread and butler arens to improve the 1ol of the elderly. But
nany of them, I must add, they are not necessarily indigenous problems for the

G and over second to the population..
Many Amerlcans unfortunately still suifer degradation despite the growth of

affivence nnd privilege and recent run-away inflation has not made the sitnation
tietter, but possibly understated the case. e

The key tact in ail of this is that most people over 63 are very much alive and

nell, They are decidedly nog prepared to view themselves as individuals who arve

_ rottligg away and will soon rid society of the added 1oad the¥, put upon the rest

Q'€ They are not oniy alive and well, hut they want to Mve better and theyx

wanh to be more aetive alid the want to contribute to society above anything

- elge, v
"o pat it ik the fewsst possible words most people think of thé over

63 §s useless old peopleswhen in fact.most of them are able and willing

-to He useful ¥ society will allow them to be. T
. This'fact points to two.urgent necessities : The need to change public

peyfeeptions of the elderly and I believe this can only be done if the

_+ mydia, particularly, television, portrays older people in a completely

* different life. - ’ ) h

As I am sure You have been told betore, television prograins only
nrely inelude any old people and many of those who are shown are

haracterized as senile and bubbling sterectypes. . .
. The second urgent need to which the survey pointed, will soon, as
the result of your work last week, be Jargely thet when the bill for
abolishment of. retirerfient in the Federal Government and raise the
mandatory retirentent hge to private enployecs when 70 becomes law.

This is of cdnrse, very unuch in Iine with ow latest Harris survey
patblished only yesterday showing by 38 percent t6 32 percent of the
'ntajetity for abolishing mandatory retirement in the Federal Goveng-
tent and by 60, percent to 31 percent of4he majority for reising the
mandatory retivement ggcto 70 for private employers. " K

Refore leaving thiy 1974 study there are some additional findings

. which I shpuld mention briefly. "

An overwhelming 97 percent of thd publie, perhaps the largest
majority we have ever found for almost anything believe that socjal
security paymients to the elderly should automatieally increase as rises
in the cost of living inercase.. The study finds no suppert for an

* arbitrary limitation on this increase. . P

Eighty-one percent of the public agreed with what I think fairly -
should be cljaracterized perhaps as“a general statement, but never-  °.
theless they. aftreed swith the statement that the Federal Government
has the.responsibility to ute general fax revenues to help support older

’ ¢O Ic. ' Ty, . L - - ] *

"p—A so, it is iniportant to stress that while most older peo
+ their condition in life is better than the general public be
- be, the tern “niogt” may bé diacsdptive. ) o

.97We found 15 percent who admitted to not having encugh* money to

* live on and this translates into some 3'million needy {909-{”:3
Moving on from the survey I would like if I might try to keep per-
. sonal observations based partly on my experience of watching the
political pressures -here and in England and op surveys in"both

countries.-- -, S ‘ i o .
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A major difference shown by the different answers ginen to broadly
similar questions in the two countries is very striking. The most recent
American example, Gallup survey published on August 14 asked
what people thought was the most important problem faeing the coun-
try today and.asked. for spontaneous replies. I will read them to you:

Figst, the high cost of living. Second, unemployment. Third, energy problems.
Fourth, International Droblems. Fifth, c¢rime and lawlessness, Sixth) moral
decling, lack of the rate of Spending. Next, dissetlstaction of the government.
Next, excessive government spending. Next, drug abuse, race relations to poverty

* and other answers, ] .

Nowheré was there any mention of specific policies for the elderly.

I turn to the same questions in a recent British survey. Here are the
answers: ) . ,

“First, inflation rising prices.” The same. “Seeond, unemI;,lo ent.”
The same. “Third, the economic situation generally. Fourth, helping
old people’s pensions;” and that includes of course, social security.
That comes before education, before housing, before taxation, or tax-
ation euts for industrializations, strikes, erime, health and welfare,
Northern Ireland or any.wother major problems. .

_ What these basically show i$ that the elderly and L olicies which are
100 N 1 =1 10 FALaIn, One () 1€
most important issues but n re in the United States.

. There are, I believe, some clear reasons for this’difference, Twenty-
one percent of the British elestorate are over 65 as compared to 15
percent here so they offer more votes to be won .by eandidates. There
_are differences in pational attitudes, obviously, to government involve-
ment and government run welfare systems with the British much more *
deeply committed to them since the war-time beyerage report and here .
of course:a much stronger, perhaps you could characterize it ag o pros=* .
perous décade, which in the past if not today fpmn’q‘.ﬂted the belief that

+ 1f the people had not provided adequately for their old age, it was
their own Tault. .~ L ¥ Lo
- _ But more important than either of these is I thinlk the recent polit-
ical history of the isstic of the elderly in Britain. In 1964 the Labor
Party was returned to power after 30 yearsin the wilderness. A°major

< g::wt in that platform and in their campaign record was, offering a

tter deal for the elderly and government pensions. .

Surveys and journalists alike reported that this part of their plat-
form a.major factor in winning votes, not just from the elderly
themseldeg, but from people of al] ages and since 1964 no British po-

itical. party hag dared to ignore the issue and all parties have vied
ith-eack other to offer better or more attractive policies. As far as
“}am gware, nothing comparable has happened here. ’ .

I should 2dd that I am ‘not suggesting that British policies aye

necessarily good for the country and even in somé casés for old
. people themselves, I.am merely terying to cxplein why the issu¢ of
- thé clderly has become a major polifical 1ssue there. o

: Two apparent side affectg of British poliey scem to me yndesirable_
- - The more the Government has shouldered the financial burden of sup-
s porting the elderly, the Jess'their relatives, sons, and daughters have
P pre?a‘md. to do'so. Furthermore, ‘more and more older people, par-

: tieularly older women, livé lone. ' ' S




. &
Interesting enough, in our 1974 ,survey here for the Council on
Aging we found that ¢5 percent.of older peoﬁple were single, divorced,
soparated, or widowed and that four out of five of these pecple, many
of whom of course live alone, were women. T )
The obher unfortunate side affect of the British policy brings me
back’ to where I started: The cost or copdition of the elderly is essen-
tial and widely debated pelitical issue given to frequent attention in
- the media, there is a tendeney to deal with the issue as purely one of
" compassion bringing suffering to helpless old pegple who are sick, poor
and incapable of doing anything to help th-emsgl\l:;agml are inerely
a burden on society. While this has resulied in hig vernment pen-
sions and improved local and central government gervices, it has also
roinforced the unfortunate stereotype of what most people belicve
old people are like. The same stereotype which our survey demon-
*.; ¥ strated to do force and which in many cases prevents people over 65
" from playing a more active, usefiil, and fulfilling role in society.

Thank you.’ ) , ’ - o

Mrs. Meywer. Thank you, Mr. Taylor, I thought that was an espe-
cially comprehensive-and fascinating bit of testimony: ;
The section. in the béginning where you point out that the public’s
. 1 L L i r T ] £ L] v
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alse England’s outlook on the clderly is very different from ours in
the United States judging from whai you said. o ..

What are they doing in Great Brifian that we should be doing here
and what are we doing here that perhaps would be helpful? What are
some things that we can learn from each other? .

Mr. Tayror, Well, I am not a great eéxpert on it, -

I think that certainly the mandatory retirement issue is one by the
United States—— ‘

Mrs, MewnEr, If you were a senior citizen of 70 years and you had
a choice of living 1n London oi New York, which one would you.

 choose? v . . . __— . -
& All r&ght, Brighton and Miami? - .
— __ Mr. Tavron, Leaving aside the issues such as crime. I think—iwell,

. take the questiori of mandatory retirement. I belicve this is a tremen-

dousstep forward, the evolution of mandatory retirement on the basis
orourdata. f. L ot
" I am not awsgre of any othet country that has moved in this dires—
. tion. This clearly seems to-be one area ihere there is a lead here,
. One ‘area where both countries are woefully weak is in this ques-
tion of the portrayal of the elderly on television and in the media
. where I thinkin both countries they are probably equally bad,
I think that because they are o hét political issue a number of things;
havg been £pge by local couneils, in Britian. I am not fully aware of
- -all'of the things that are being done here, but some of the same things
e a5 dmll'e }}mst d ‘ 11 -
~2here 1s one httle study, well, one major study which has been
" 4 carried out indngland whi}::h by the way has not beJE:n ducted here.
" -Old"people; because they do not have enough money, j iti
often forcetl to chposa betsyéen cither heating their homes 2 1tel)
in thd winter time or feeding themselves adequately. As the'yesult,
very large numbers-of thelp;ﬁ ve.In very cold honsing, nnheated hous:.
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ing, or underheated housing in the winter, .\ recent study showed
that 10 percent of old people in Britian have dangeronsly low bedy
temperatures during the winter months. That may<or may not be a
problem here. I hope T have answered your question. X
Mrs. Mevy~es. The elderly have fraditionally ro‘\elt_ll_ in larger per-
centages than other groups, as wehave heard here this morning and
as we all know, vet their national influence or their political influ-
ence does not really reflect real power, not yet. Why do you think that
_1s? What is the missing ingredient ? ° o
Mr. Taxrok. Well. one of the things is that the older people get the
more set they get in their voting behavior and somebody who lias voted
" . Republican or Democrat is nnlikely to change in his later years and
clearly. they are subject to all the other pressures. there?ore. they do
not vote as a gronp. they have not been organized as Mr. Scammon
gaid earlier. . ; i
. I think myself. they are more—the issues of the elderly are niore
= effectively treated by appealing to the whole electorate rather than
appealine specifically to the self-interests of the elderly.
%Ers. Mevyeg. Thank you. Mr. Taylor. Mr. Sarasin ¢
Mr. Sapasiy N ; L.
My. Taylor, I too have found your testimony to be very<illuminat-. |
ing. I wonder, when you talk about the great percentage of Americang
. Who have felt that it was a Federal responsibflity to use general tax®
revenue for tho care of the elderly and socigl security and so forth;
was the question asked whether or not the philosophy of social seenrity
shoidd be changed ? At the present time, it is an earned-right system;
. _1E you participate yon can take part in it. If you dont fake part in it,
“bat if von go to general tax revenues, I think the'very real question
wonld have, to be asked: Whether should that apply in each test gnd
make it eseentially a welfare system. T was wondering if you asked any
questions in that area? : P .o ’
Mr. Tavror, We didn’t, I'm afrdid, sir. I could speculate on that
if vou want a specnlation, . C
Mr: Sarasix. Do you have any speeulation? . | < ‘
Mr. Tavror Well, I rea_ﬁy don’t abont the answers on tax revenues,| .
there is perhabs based on a feeling of guilt perhaps based on knowl:).
" - edgeof one'sparentsandsoon, . . ¢ o w R i
here is an increasirig tendency to feel that the state has 2 get_laeﬁi?‘
responsibility for older citizens o€ whether they. may have contribu
or not gontributed in social stenrity. That is certainly the way thing
have happened in Europe and I think perhaps in.some respects, b
not in others. the United States, it is probably, goin#"to happen here.
Mr., SarasiN. As that group'of people gets to be n larger segment
of the total population, how much birdeén-hns been, seen in_the.
'iS)f iﬁﬂgtiﬁn that exists in"snch eountries as England and the Enit
tates o T e e T
Mr. Taxror, Well, T think you put yonz finger on a very $fiportant—
can there be increases in pensions_ paid by, the British" Government
has been one of the factors which Jed to:an incregse in inflation, If
everythinig was efual there would bg less/inflation, = "+ : \go .
*  Onepartial solution, of conrse. which I think was touched on earlier
- is'that many people go o working later as the reslt of early retire- -
ment you wouid generate all kinds of additional financial and economie
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“either, but we are certah
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benefits which count awsy the inereasing rmumbers of dependent

+elderly. I certainly do not have an easy solution to the problem.

T 1ed very much the suggestion Tronl the previous witness, nuch
rnore?fttention should be given to the ways of keeping people out’
of institutiogs;fax incentives to pay people for being in the hoine and
placed in the famil 3%d community. It seems to me both socially and
almost certain finanicifly gesirable. | L -

Mr. Sarasiy. I wonder ow ganclyof our policy results in the stoking
of fires of inflation when we Inglg¥ all of these things and then say
that there is a problem out there,\tojglve to provide more dollars
and so we go out and borrow the mouey to do it and try to solve the
Froblem, then look .again and say, oh, the proplem is increasing we
13d better incrensesthose 'llaayments. I do not know what the answet is

ily not slowing that wheel down atpall,
Mr. Tavror. I think it is-almost a question of politics which geople
like you are elected to perform. !

Mr. SarasiN. Thanks. :

Mrs. Mey~er. Thank you very much, Mr. Taylor.-We appreciate
your waiting and it was really excellent testimny. -

[The hearing was adjowned at 12:55 p.m.]_“_ ) .
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APPENDIX 1

, TREPARED STATEMENT.OF THEo00sE J, GoRDOX

-tHE RESULTS OF A TECEHNOLOGY ASSESSMENT OF LIFE-EXTENDING TECHXOLOGIES

Gentlemen : It 13 {ndeed o pleasure for me to address the Committes this morn.
ing. Your inquiry into the spotential numbers and condition of the elderly is
important, in my view. thr several reasons ; .

- The number of elderly Personsaeems certain 1o continue growing,
This group has certaln heeds whick are now only dimly recogg;zed and
served and which could well be changing in the future.
- The impacts of the changing age distribution 1o our society are not Fet
q \ well undersiood but could be very important not only to the elderl¥. but
t togoclety atlarge.’
Thus, yonr inqulg counld affect the happiness and dignity of the elderly 2nd hel
. eapture some of the opDOrtunitiés of the coming demographic shifts while avold-
ms\their pitfalls,
tures Gronp recently Dertormed a research stud¥ which bears dlrectly
ont ples. Thig . work was performed under contract to the Applied Research
Directorate (BANN} of the National Stience Foundation; it was funded at a
level of about $300,000 and extended over g pertod of 18 months. It was a tech- 5%
nology assessment of lifesextending technologles and was designed not only to
explore the technplogies which conld provide extended life, but to reachif-deeper
‘understanding of the impacts of these developments, We found that life expect-
ancy 1s increasing, that new blomedieal technologies would accelerate this trend,
and that changing_sge distribition could have siguificant economic and eoclal
impact. Tn the hext half hour or 5o I plan to summarize the prinetpsl findings of
our, work, {The final version of the report has not yet,been. published, but I have
~ & Ifmited number of copies of the draft report and Would be glad to provide
copies to you and-members 6f your staff, it it would be helpfal to yo IE

The study was designed to focus on:pear-term biomedical cap#bilities whlch~
could extend life and to search for im tiona of these technologies: We con-
centrated on, extension ‘of:adult life. rather than fthe life expectancy of infants
or, children. We omitied accldents as a cauge of death, not hecause of their Jack +
* of importance, but because the strategles for deallng with accldents and the con.
sequences of these stratesies. 1o be of a-basically different sort ahd would
have dilifted onrzéfforthagd:they included. Similarly, we did not examine
sniclde preventich ology. but* conzidered suicide from the stendpoint:of -
valnes and frequencm We addressed the domestic sltuation primarily: however,
we e::a ed; at'least in cureory form, the effects on demography¥ of the ase

ng technologles irr other~conntries. As for time domain, we con.

w only technologies which wepe near at hand, coming into general use, In

rch and development, or which were now biomedical goals. The Impacts,

which we examined concentrated on the next few decades, but In parts of the’

study we considered demographic impact through the life span of the people
who wonld usethe technolosies (E:hibit 1) .

N
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Exurer 1

5COPE OF THE STUDY

Near-term biomedical capabilities which extend life and their implications.
Omit aceldents. . L2
Snitide, from the standpoint of values and freguency. . .
The United States primarily. . - -
Time domain: From present until demographic impacts of technolggies—
tablize. P . -
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As is well known, mean life expectandy at all ages has heen iner 3
& shows that life expectancy at hirth has grown dra Egcally since the beginning
ot this century, changing frem 48 years in 1900 to aDProximafely 72 years in
1975. The growth it life expPectancy at advanced age has been less dramatie. For
example, in 1800 & wan of age €0 could expect {o live some 1d iMore yegys; in
1576, a man of age 60 could expect to livé some 17 more years. Life expectancy
at birth bas Inereased as & result of imNrovements in Infant mortality and curing
of many diseases of childlhood; the diseases of middle age and advanced age
(heart di»ease. eancer, and stroke) have heen mitich more difficuil to ‘conquer.
Furthermove, the aging process, which is poorly tinderstood, seems to place an
upper limit on life span.

To examine the biomedical tectinologies themselves, we interviewed 25 experts
aronnd the conntry who were engaged in vesearch which. if successtful, promised
to Affect life expectancr. We found that there were three generai strategles
being pursued :

N Research into the prevention, diagnosis and treatment of heart d:seaae.

cancer, gnd.stroke,
Research into the cause for aging itself, with the possibility of slowlng
‘the rate of aging. .
Research inte the relationship bet\reen soctal conditions, aging and dea th.

The effects of these techuologies could be viewed a3 either inereasing ti num-
her of peoble who live to older age (squaring the survival curve) or increastng
the maxinium age to whick people live (life span extending). The kifids of so- ,
cleties that are produced by these two fypes of technologies are qyite different.
In the case et’ curve squaringp more DPeoble of middle age live to old age, but death

Ao ooy B ¥ AT UHCIIE] LIS =i T
nol wh:c}:r hme the sole effect ¢f increasing life span, more m tviduals llve
past what is regaraed as maximnm age today (Exhlblt 3) A
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Exmimr 4 .
o .  TYPICAL SQUARING TECHNOLOGIES * ] .

Cardiovascolar gdicease prevention, diagnosis, and treatment technologies,

Cerebrovascular diseage prevention, diagnosis, .ang treatment technologies.

Malignant neoDlastic disease prevention, diagnosis and treatment technologies.

Nonhiolegle prostheses,

Technologies that improre the environment, such as those that reduce stress.
»

Exfistr §
PRINCIPAL "TONCEPTS AND APPROACHES TO CONTROL OF AGING
1]

Effect of dlet; lipofusein accumulations; lowering temperatuze ; free radicals;
the immune mechanism; abnormal oxidation; the pituitary; cellular replication
errotxzs; loss of tissne elasticity ; membrane damage; cross-lipking; cell divigion
limi . ) R

Exhihits 4 and § describe typical squaring technologies and aging control
technolagies. ¥n examining these classes of technologies with our consultants,
we conclude that curve squaring technologies are much mere Ukely in the short
term than life spon extending techiologies. Tite former go heyond gdvances in
 dealing with key disesses and include public health and education, improved nu-
trition (in the sense that what we eat apparently affects the probabiity of con- °
tracting certain diseases), and environmental confrol and imbrovements, .

The life span extépsion technoiogies wiii require breakthronghs and it svonid
be surprising It aging eontroi is demonstrated ‘for human heings over the next
twl® decades. This is-not to say that we belleve control of aging is impogsiite
or unlikely; quite the contrary, we think that many of the fines of research
which are belng pursued are promising. However, this work is belng conducted
at & very basic level and there iz ne shared perception about the basic mecha-
#sms tor aging. Thus scientists engaged in this work are foliowing many differ-
g::{.‘ legds, Demonstration and vaildation of one or another of these theories witl

e time. . .

In studying the impacts of iife-extending technologies we considered demograph-
ics, economics, insurance and social seeurity, heaith care costs, societal change, «
interest growps and politics, and values and ethies. With.respect to the latter
subject, the Institute of Scclety, Ethics and the Life Sclence gerved as a,subcon-
tractor _to the Futures Group, , .
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.- Exalsrr 7
DEMOGRAPIIC EFFECTS—WORLD
}
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Exhibits 8, 7 and 8 summarize demographic effects in the Ualted States and the,
world. In these charts the base case (life expectancy at.a)l ages remalnae It ig at
ptesent) is compared with a case involving ;zrogress it disease curing technology,
For the Unlted States curxent. trends suggest that by the yiar 2025 the number of
people over 63 yearsof age will have risen from 22 million to 46 mlltion, or from

-




10 percent to 14 percent of our popuation. If- squaring technologies come to
frultion, a3 we & t, hy 2025 there are lkely to be 74 million “people aver G5,
. comprising 23 perceat of our population. By the year 2000, assuming that the
squaring techrnologies have heen {ntroduced, life expectaney at birth seems Hkely
to rise to about 78 years and by 2025, lite expectarfey at birth will rise to 86 years,
{versus 72 years in 1975). > '

Taking & world vicw, the ntaber of people over 63 years of age seems likely
to geow trom 227 inillfon’ in 1975 to 760 million by 2025, or from 5.8 percent pf
worlid pobulation to 0.8 percont, With acceleration of diseas® cuxing technolugies
represeitted hy our “squared” case, the fumher of people over the age 65 scemis
likely to grow to about 1.2 billion people by the year 2025, about 114 pércent of
world popnlation. - . - » .

. One effect of the disense curing technologies will be to ineronse world popula-
tion, In our demographic model we found that current trends suggest norld popu- *.
lation will grow from abont 4 billion at.present to 7.7 billion hy the year 2023,
With, the new enrve squaring technologies, wotld.populatiod by 2023 will be sonje
8.3 hillion, or €00 million people more than the hase ease. Of thesa 600.millfon.
400 million will be in less developed conntries and 200 million in developed
countries. , -

Focuging again on the United States, the social and economie fmpadcts attribn-
tahle to the Rew (echuologies seem likely to be minimal prlor to the yenr 2006, Of

' muck mqre Impostance to geonomic find social conditions is the assumed avernge
. retirement age, We felt this issue was signlficant for this study since the tech.®
nologies we Investigated would be likely to have the effect of increasing vigor
and diminighing the symptoms of aging, in addition to affecting survival rates.
Withs vigor at a particular age changed, clearly retirement rates might also
change. BExhibit 9 shows %e size of the labor torce which would result from three
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/ asaumptions about retirement age. Dﬁayed retirement" assunies an average
dela¥y“of, 10 yenrs by the year : “Earl,v; retirement” assmnes that retirement
rates are, on the average, accelétated 5 years UF the year 2000. As can besseen,
these nssumptions have a great afrect on labor force size,

We formed the impresgion that retirement age would be lll.ely to therease for ¢
severil refisons:
' Polls have indieaéd that many retired people, “hen ashed, say they would
ratier be working.
Feelings of anoniie and uselessness wiikch wmetlme come m,th retivement «
apparently accelerate deati.
Both socinl security and Dension funds would benefit, appreciably 'hy in-
* creasillg retirenient age only # few years.
Diserimination on the basis of age, after (.u, seemed to us }ike]x to be
- confidered illegal {n the near future .o
The effect of defdred retirement would inclade an hiferease In b\P digrinishing
uf the dependéncy mtio, reduced Lurden gn sucial secunity, inhrvsed socigtfzation
_among the elderly and—imost significantly—a Potential problewr in the provision
of Jobg fot all those Who wished to work. With resbect to this Iatter point, we
formed the iPression that the natwnre of werk would vhauge: these chanfes
could include the development of more “parallel” fobs, shared work, pghttime
work, shortening of the work week, and seriaf carecrs. . y:
We found-that retirement age would have to iner?s& albout 6 years by §000 in
erder to balante inflow and oatflow of the soclal secnrity fund. - s
Wit worked with special senluars gonvened by thie Ameriean Couneil ! f.ife
Insraniee to eXplore the cousequences of life extenslon on insurfince. Pnels of
academicians helped us identify a rauge of social impaets; interviews ¥ith peo. |
ple froiu various futerest Zeonps kelbed us reach an nudera.mdluw of the PeEcen-.
tions of these impacts. We fornied these impPressions v
ven withuuf 1if2 extension. the aged wall have more p&ltlml cloul; we do
net kusw o hether iz clout will translatc into actual political poy %r
Raising the retircrmvent aie cnuld bring with it significant changds in the
fawily® fur examyle, i aureasiug retirement age diminjshies rate
of young people ity the Jabor forve, how lopg will the famaly be ¢
oblizated to support children? .

Lnereu~ing labwr furee pactieipation of the aged may keizhten th eompetl-
tion between the Foung and the ol for. j‘wﬁl
Imterest” in Illmuun fur mia- E‘ueor and conkinning cdueat' n Should
increase.
@~ * We funapd the Lelief that for the ne\t 23 yeats the technologies we C'JI‘ISHI(.'P(.(I
. will hase the effet of extending middle age rather than extenling old age. Of
cvliese. this i1 Key to the vondition of 4 Jpfiger tived society. It will affleet health
Costs, the we a:e Jeden, I'mtIuCthItv. soemllzazion, national vigor, and old/
jmmg relationsdilps.
Aret cousideration. it would seein that agzregate net natipnat heulth,costs
Would nrease 45 a result of curve squarlng technuloglies. Hawever, if the clirve
squeriag fechiwlogies are preventative rathor than therapeutic, the opposité may
be the vase. For esamble. discevery of the linkage bétween nutritional fretors
and eertain dlsenses could increave Iongevit¥at very lowstosty
Some of onr specific recommendations were : . ‘
Studies be conducted to help reach an understanding of the ci:;mginw
Leonuplex interrela tivhsliips I»L't“n.cn retirginent nge and the changing nature’
= of work. We believe that ch'm::os in retfrement age will cause fundamental
.. {ifferences in our ccondmy nifd in the fray that older people ly'e md view .
themysplves,
. Detailed nformation Le collected nadg avallable to other researchers .
abont econgmde contributions and ) els made by older people.
Various ageugies of the govern theéir polley thlnking estl-
\ mates of the' ccndeanences of theiy'nctlons on age
nendation s pirticutarly reloey to policiey tollo ¥ the Department of \
Labor, Seclal Jecurity Administration, the armed forcesyand state and- local »
governments, Rolleles which affect retiremnnt “fge con hAve Profonad and
Ia‘;ting eonsequences oni the nature of ont ecdnomy. When ﬂ:ose lelcles tend
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to d:minlsh i‘etiremant age -the inkvitable econsequence will be lncreasinh\
dependenty ratlo and isolation’of the aged. There may be other policies wiiich
affect dependency ratios directly rather than throuig retlrement age; these
shoul pin-pigpointed and understood in terms of their likely consequences ;
tor American soclety. ‘These include, for e{ample polities which delay entry
Into the Jabor force, shortening of the work.week, introdnetion of sabbatleals
and intermittent retirement, and so on.

Adgitional study be applled to questiohs Of international impacts of life-
extendlng technologies und the changing soclal dlmensions which might ae-
company these techuologtgs While such Impactswere suggested in thisg stmls', .
they were beyond the initial scope determined for thls work; nevertheléss,

, thes appear to be important, perbiaps urgedtly so. -

Ggverment estimates of .the cost of developing blomedlcal technologies
should inclnde from the outset estimates of the cost of producing those tech-
.nologles and distributing them in scciety. Emphasis {n research on life ex-
‘tending technologies should, be given %o those which promise to he
mexpensive not only for immediate but secondary costs as well.
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. . .
PREPARED STATEMENT OF FIXROLD L. Smerramp g, .

My summary comments regarding the future of agmg in America il fucns
primakily on the ecopomlc dimension, especially regarding employment, as re-
Quested by the subeommittee stalf. But first, it wili be necessary ro mention some
of the context within which projections about the future must be made.

One context'has to do with demographic developments, although 1 o not think
thdt the “body count™ approach to the topic of aging is sufficieut. We atso need -
to know about the changiug soéial and cultwral definitions of what is meant by
“old,” what Is medut by “agihg” and the “aged.” In thiy conaection, I believe

L that we are in the midst of & process of redefinition. It won't be the first thme in

' the history of Western society.
For vne thing, certain age Sroups ln our soeclety are beginning to resist belug
laheled therefore treated negatlvely as “old”-—especially insofar &s that tern.
~evokes<fegafive connotntions. Before too many Sedrs come to pass—and loug
before the year 20251t is quite pessible that persons 6065 Fears cld—compared
to 6065 year-0lds of, say, 10 or 20 vears ago0—will not accept the label—sagain,
to the destes that society contifines to use the term negatively. Some of the
reasons for this skift have to do with the marked educational achievement level
of persons 40 fo 50 rears oid teday, compared to the same age group 10 or 20
» years ago, and even compared to.younfer persons today¥. When today’s 40-50
year-olds move into their 60’s before and by the end of this century, the gap
between thelr educational level and that of persons in thelr 30's will he muchk more
narrow than the corresponding comparison in X977 would show.
¥ Furthermbre, wetcan expect the §0-85 year-old population—even in the J'eﬁr
2000, ief alone 2025—{0"have.a health status above that of:60-85 year-olds in
1960's and 1970°s. To the degree that terms such a8 “old@” and “aged” conno e
- gubstantial decrements In physical and mental aetivity, the application of those

+ terms to such persons wili he more unrealistic and irrational than they are todsas.

. _One mere point about™this proposition *I'm’ expressing here: In terms of
demograph¥; we must get out of me?’SMﬁstical reporting and lﬁi%%_tstlc* bablt *
of uging the category of the “65-plul populatlon™ when carrying research
and policymaking decistons régarding the figid or prohlems of aging. An 85 year-
old is not the same as 2 65 Year-old—no.more thait g 45 year-old is the same as &

23 year-old persotr. And yet, persous 65 years old are lumped into the same gate-
gory a3 persons 85 and oider. i a\
Tahle k Indicates that 6569 population as a proportion of the total 65-plus
ulatlon |n 1975, was over 36 percent, hut by the Fenr 2000, tey wili pake up -
only .less than 20 percent. Their . aumbers will have Increased—-assu ming no
further Improvemments in mortality rates, an assumption we ean no longergecept
without Question—by only @ percent. On the other hand, take a look at the §5-palus
popitlation®: In ‘1975, only 8 Percent of the totnl 85-plus population, but by the
year 2000, nesﬂ#’m percent of the total so-called “aged Dopulationt And heir '
numbers wlll bave Increased by 108 perdent. The actusl figures and proigrt ons
may torn out te he greater by then [f morfality rates for persons now thg r
- 80'¢’eontinue to,decline as they ha,ve in the past few years. -
All of this iheans that the so-called der population will be gattlng dider, nit
merely larger. One of the economic Jifiplications of this shift in the age ogmpos
tion of the older populatlon I that The costs of supppebing that Wulat!on wiil be
monnting to a level, and at a rate higher than indicated by the trptcal study
that simply takes the 85-ping population classificatic, and multiplies by some \
estimated per-capita cost to arrive at an estimate of the total a ate copt to
the goclety and the economy of providing for that ~%mp The costs will be greater,
alnd atlhe qne;ﬂon ariges, what Steps are we Lak ow to preparg for those addi- .
© - tlenal costs iy
An Increasing popﬂlatlon in fie very old agé group—those who will vbry clenrly
” mot be expected, on the whole, to be in the laborforce—will, requlre’ additfonal
expenditures for a wide varlety of costly servieds, and these Wil typleally have = _ '\
to be borne’ hy Fedcral State, hnd Iocal government tax sources. In the future,
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a lower proportion of this very oid age group will have children that can be
cotinted on to support them, Ang¢ such children as there are will themselves be
in thelr 80's, As a rough Index of the number of children G0-64 years old fur every.
100 persons §5 and older, lot we point out that in 1977.there were 459 60-64 yeat-
olds for every 100 persvus 85 and older. Over the next 23 years, by the 3 ear 2000,
t{hat lratm will plumhlet to 270, and will increase but only slightly thereafter.
“{Table 5.

Can w e) expeet thoze 60-6G4 Fear old children to be able to pay for nueh of the
" support services'for their even older parents—especially if most of these 60-G4
sear-olds gre retired and out of the labor force ? T doult it very much. Increasmgly,
under sueb retirement age poliey condifions, the Ligh cost of spporting an Sd-plus
poputation wili have to be borne by Federal, State e local go¥érnments. .

Can we afford to he cpmpldeent, now, ¥ working out projéctions of vavious
p‘ija‘b[l taxes and taxable salary bases, as well ns cost estmates of private pension .
plans only 23 years from now—never mind 2025, whiech is uearly 30 Years fruin
now—if those projections Ja¢ not take into aceonnt the_inereased aging of the
63-pfus populatian elagsifieation? Thiz question i3 especially erltioal if current
retirement age policy prevails. or if reticement at even earlier ages than is now
Jbrevalent is eharacteristic of the time between uow and the year 2000.

From an #hnomic standpoint, the costs of supporting a growing population

L of nonunrhmg persans 60 to 63 and older will have_ to eome Eromn theo working
Pepttation. and would require an ever-growing gueonomy Wwith a pruiuetive ca-
pacity providlng the resonrees for that supPort. The fact thnt the annuyl average
preduetivity pereentage Increase oxer the uost recpnt past-10 senrs is one-linle
thit of the post-World War 1L perlod suzgests that growth m that capacity may
not b connuensurate with the need. (Table 6.3

The fnture of aging in Ameorica—ns tn other mﬂustrmh?ed soejetios~—i=, in
viry large-pact, :.'mtim.out o the future of our, productivity bivee, nud tiat wil?
[ .lewnmned iu turn, by the costa of enef®e: amt rosources in fhat furure—
coctx which nil) grow not gniF becanxe of any shorfages. Lui nlso becanxe more
cmutfries are bLeziunlnZ to compete with, m; for neeess to, and wunol OVer.
whatever the supply wifl be.

Numbers of peoble, to repreaf. are not- ihe onlv\ncousndemtion. \YIIL far ex-
ampbid. the ~o- -enlledMier pobulition. az they reachh what we aww enll retire-
went sge, Accept refirement isedines at a level typieal of reticrement inconmes
tmlay—even if measuredans 4 proportion of pre-wliremout eaviings? Wil for
eynmple, the remalniug weorking mpul:ﬂion.con!mﬂe as it the st to honor
the social contriot between goncmtionc

I have heer told, in this connection? that ohe of the congrdssional mlmmtteec
Iins votéd for, or is soriously considerinz. a previously unplanned increase in
tax rates, inethe taxable base for the working poimlation. and a proviously in-
banned reduetion iw retired worker benefits as a proportion, of previous earn-
infs, Thig woutd aPPear. at least on the surface. as if the Tabor foree, economic
and demagraphic develohments—under existing retirement age Pollcies—are re-

- quiring thaf hofh the Founger werklng generation and the older nonworking
Feneraffon must make sacrifices. Under okisting petirement age mlicies. the
worklng pdpulntion wonld Im&a fo.pay miore than previonsly planned. and the °
vongrorking older group will have to accept Tower retired “-nrhor beneﬂts thag
rrevibusly’ Planned.

Thia brings me to the point‘made in the summary reiort by the I‘utnres

= Group, namely. that the average rettrément age will bave {o be delayed to pre-

vent. '%reat ‘economie problems—even without apy life extension. And I. wopl
nda t evam It new techpoloZies and health, practices only make It' possife

- for mpre peoPle to Hve I an extended old age (a3 obbosed to tncreasing Ghe
,an-chlied life-span), and if there are no upward changes.in retirement agd.
“sdditionnd support burdens en the remaining working population, will be in gtdre
far {hem, Retirement income Problems for the nonworking elder population will
also be aggravated—again, jf current retlrement age poliey Is niaintained, ewn
more asgravated if averaze setirement age-t2 reduced further. .

Tt ali eomes dosen to the inconvenient fact that for the vast mafovity-of ng—
unless we chipse Milllonaire patents, or woh a precious lottery contosf:-omplor-
mettt I2 and will continne to be the best way of assuring an ndequafe inegme,
Given the inint effert of such facfors as demofraphic change, progress in health
estnivs, infation, apd slusgish growth in the prodactive base of an cconomy—
nelding the growing costs of provlding energy and resources tn maintain that
‘Productive hasp—-aa!mlg with the growlng recognition of the constitutional and
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moral gronpds for.not using yearcof birth as a condition for making biring and
retirement declsions for older persons, my scenario for the future of agtug in
America would inelude a gradual but Qefinite shift in age-at-retirement Policies
it the United States, toward raising average retirement age. I also think that

+ u¥her industrialized countries like our own will be in the throes of recousider-
ipz and changibg ageat-retirenient practices, and for-the same reasons.

Of coarse, there are other alternntive. future regarding this issue, but I ¢o
uot believe tiat our population’s aspirations, expeftations, and raluey would
allow for those other optious te be aduPted: @ )
--My floal comment is this: Our society's walue s¥Stem is such that we il
want to provide the versy best of. retirement life and cohditions for olur fellow
aged cftizens, inctuding our awn purents and relatives. When we speak of the
future, We obviously must melude curselves awong the aged vf 23 years or so

.. Irom teday. And se retired ifizens themnselves can be expected to demand
“%he very best. If thit s the vase—and I believe it will continue to be thescase
- 1N the pext severgl dedades—it means, i 0¥ obinion, that there will bave to
be fewer retirces than any stralght-line extrapolafipr method would project that
1%, if current retiremént age trends vuntinue. We will u0t reduce such a hopula-
tion through euthanasia. That, tve. is part of our value sistem. Insteq ;
. will reduce.such a populatiun, by redefiiing wdie is “aged,” and~tTedelining
. .+  Wwhil we now iabel a5 the "working age ™ populption: — ]
17 Thus, in order to gassure a truly_deca Sfirenient existence, fulure-pepull- ..
* -Hong in at least the 6908 Teasold clgssifleation will have to be induced 1o re-
w Joain in the 1abor foree"And in order to gssure themsel¥es n decent retivement
. S dite e Mgt EXpeCt that groul itself to deiln right {o continne working,
-1i0T to be forced or even sedu%‘»;ed to retire 4s Foung g5"Ch or so, and thus
face thes prospects of at least 18 To 20 years, on the avernge, of lving in the
risk-laden status of retirement Flealths, 60 and 63, or gven 70-year-olds iu the
futnre, Wil probably prefer to defer comPlete retirement in order tongssure a
decent income when they do retire. Government will have to pro’ idew
# sueh persong to remin in thé laber foree, for budgetary redasons.

I certainly do not clalm that the shift will be niechanistically achieved. Fur®
thernwore, many institutional aud.implenientation problems will Le encountered.
But one of the primary. purboses of indalzing.in intelligent th-n.@rls of what
hies in the future js.to Prepare society and individuals now for the varfous kinds
and degrees of adjnstments that will have to be made hyWat Future
ecomes the present. Fulurism is not a fun-and-games exercise for dilettantes
or abstract intellecinals pursaing ideas for the sake of ideas. It js.an indispen?
sable neeessity for responsible decision-makers who are couceified with the hest
interests of tbeir society and econoiny. . A o

Acgordingly, 1 want to congratalate this fommitlee for holdiig these hearings.
I oniy hope that in their work in leglslating committees. the faets, projections.
and vigwDoints presebted here will be applied in a fraittul manner.

B 1.—Fo, hictio;t‘ss—ss old, and 85 plus, as proportion of fotal 65 PINs
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